
 MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
 “A Great Place to Live, Work and Play” 
  
  

 

REGULAR COUNCIL 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

Tuesday March 25, 2014 9:00 AM Council Chambers 
Administration Building 

 
 

#1 CALL TO ORDER 
 

  

#2 ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

  

#3 MINUTES 3.1 Regular Council Meeting minutes held March 11, 2014 – to be 
adopted 
 

1 

  3.2 Business Arising from the Minutes 
 

- 

#4 DELEGATIONS* 
 

4.1 Encana Presentation (9:45 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.) 12 

#5 PUBLIC HEARING 
 

5.1 Bylaw No. 13-711 NE 13-70-23 W5M 14 

  5.2 Bylaw No. 13-714 NW 26-71-26 W5M 
 

26 

  5.3 Bylaw No. 14-718 SW 06-72-26 W5M 
 

46 

 LATE ITEM 
 

5.4 Bylaw No. 13-701 SE 20-70-22 W5M  
 

60 

#6 BYLAWS 
 

6.1 Bylaw No. 13-711 NE 13-70-23 W5M 14 

  6.2 Bylaw No. 13-714 NW 26-71-26 W5M 
 

26 

  6.3 Bylaw No. 14-718 SW 06-72-26 W5M 
 

46 

 LATE ITEM 
 

6.4 Bylaw No. 13-701 SE 20-70-22 W5M 
 

60 

 LATE ITEM 
 

6.5 Bylaw No. 14-724 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw 127 

#7 OLD BUSINESS  
 

 

#8 NEW BUSINESS 8.1   Grader Blades and Tools Tender 
 

144 

  8.2   Grader Districts Tenders  
 

147 



 

  [Type text]
 [Type text] [Type text] 

 LATE ITEM 8.3   TWP 710 Discussions 
 

150 

  8.4   2014 Road – Paving Tender Results 
 

151 

  8.5   Design and Procurement of Two Firehalls 
 

157 

  8.6   Grovedale Community Centre Cell Service  
 

163 

  8.7   Visitor Information Centre Funding  
 

166 

  8.8   Stock Dog Trial for 2014 Western Canadian Finals 
  

169 

  8.9   Grande Prairie Live Theatre – Reel Shorts Film Festival 
 

171 

  8.10  Knowledge Tree Early Learning & Childcare 
 

179 

  8.11  D.A.R.E. Program  
 

197 

  8.12  Cancel Committee of the Whole Meeting 
 

199 

  8.13  Launch of New Website 
 

200 

 LATE ITEM 
 

8.14  New Fish Creek Cemetery Committee Member Appointment 
 

201 

  8.15  2014 Annual Greenview Golf Tournament  
 

203 

  8.16  2014 Annual Ratepayers Barbeques 
 

205 

  8.17  Education Property Tax  
 

206 

#9 COUNCILLORS 
BUSINESS & REPORTS 
 

 
 

- 

#10 CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 - 

#11 IN CAMERA  
 

11.1 Legal 
 

1 

#12 ADJOURNMENT  
 

- 

 

*The order of the agenda has been altered in order to allow for receiving a delegation prior to the Public 

Hearing. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
         
 
 
 
 

 Minutes of a 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
M.D. Administration Building, 

Valleyview, Alberta, on Tuesday, March 11, 2014 
 

# 1: 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

Deputy Reeve Burton called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 

PRESENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTENDING 
 
 
 
 
 

Deputy Reeve   Tom Burton 
Councillors   George Delorme  
   Dave Hay 
   Roxie Rutt 
   Bill Smith 
   Dale Smith 
   Les Urness 

 
Chief Administrative Officer  Mike Haugen 
General Manager, Corporate Services  Rosemary Offrey 
General Manager, Community Services  Dennis Mueller 
General Manager, Infrastructure & Planning                                   Grant Gyurkovits 
Legislative Services Officer  Lucien Cloutier 
Communications Officer  Denise Thompson 
Recording Secretary  Lianne Kruger 
 

ABSENT  Reeve    Dale Gervais 
 

#2:  
AGENDA  
 

MOTION: 14.03.119. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
That the March 11, 2014 agenda be adopted with the following additions: 
 

 6.2 Bylaw 14-717 – Road Closure Request 
 8.6 Little Smoky Bridge SW 6-69-21 W5 
 8.7 Brush Clearing 
 8.8 MGA Review Session 
 8.9 Regional Collaboration – Terms of Reference 
 8.10 Grain Transportation 
 8.11 Grande Cache Doctor Recruitment & Retention 
 8.12 Managers Report 
 8.13 Budget 

 CARRIED 
 

#3.1 
Regular Council 
Meeting 
 

MOTION: 14.03.120. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held on Tuesday, February 25, 
2014 be adopted with the following changes.  

 Add the word “Councillor” to Bill Smith on page 7 
 Add MPC to Councillor Tom Burton’s report 

1



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 2 

 

 

 CARRIED 
 

#3.2 
BUSINESS ARISING 
FROM MINUTES 

3.2  BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES: 
Ridgevalley High School Grad Class – Council inquired regarding the status of the 
revisions to Policy 1005.  Administration advised that the revisions would be 
presented at the next Policy Review Committee meeting. 
 

 Councillor Dale Smith entered the meeting at 9:05 a.m. 

 6.2 BYLAW 14-717 ROAD CLOSURE REQUEST 
BYLAW 14-717 RD 
CLOSURE REQUEST 
FIRST READING 

MOTION: 14.03.121. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council approve first reading of Bylaw 14-717 closing the original government 
road allowance adjoining the South boundary of SE 15-69-21-5 as per section 22 of 
the Municipal Government Act. 
    CARRIED 
 

#7 
OLD BUSINESS 

7.0  OLD BUSINESS 

 7.1 MILLAR WESTERN 

LETTER OF 
SUPPORT - MILLAR 
WESTERN 

MOTION: 14.03.122. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council provide a letter of support to Millar Western to obtain a permit 
extension from the Minister of Alberta Environment and Sustainable Resource 
Development to continue to operate the Fox Creek Wood Waste burner until June 
30, 2016. 
    CARRIED 
 

#8 
NEW BUSINESS 

8.0  NEW BUSINESS 

 8.1  WATER WELL CONFIRMATION 

GRANDE CACHE 
AREA WATER 
WELLS 

MOTION: 14.03.123. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council direct Administration to engage the services of HCL Consultants Ltd. 
To conduct a field study confirming ownership, status and location of the water 
wells identified in their preliminary table top study of the Grande Cache area, with 
an upset limit of $11,500.00 to come from the 2014 Capital Budget. 
 CARRIED 
 

 8.2  PLOW TRUCK TENDER 
 
 
 
 

2



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 3 

 

 

PLOW TRUCK 
TENDER 

MOTION: 14.03.124. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council approve the tender submitted by Greatwest Kenworth Ltd. of Grande 
Prairie in the amount of $484,396.16 plus G.S.T. for the supply of two plow trucks 
complete with sanding and plowing equipment as identified in the specifications, as 
per the 2014 Capital Budget. 
 CARRIED 
 

 8.3  CATERPILLAR TRAINING & SAFETY DAYS 

CATERPILLAR 
TRAINING & 
SAFETY DAYS 

MOTION: 14.03.125. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council approve sending two Operations employees to attend the Caterpillar 
Safety Training Days in Peoria, Illinois from April 2nd to April 4th, 2014. 
 

TABLE MOTION 
14.03.125 

MOTION: 14.03.126. Moved by: COUNCILLOR GEORGE DELORME 
That Council Table motion 14.03.125.  
  CARRIED 
 

IN CAMERA - 
PERSONNEL 

MOTION: 14.03.127. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, this 
meeting goes in camera at 9:30 p.m. 
  CARRIED 
 

 Personnel 

OUT OF CAMERA MOTION: 14.03.128. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, this 
meeting come out of camera at 9:38 p.m. 
  CARRIED 
 

LIFT MOTION 
14.03.125 
CATERPILLAR 
SAFETY TRAINING 

MOTION: 14.03.129. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council lift motion 14.03.125. and approve sending two Operations 
employees to attend the Caterpillar Safety Training Days in Peoria, Illinois from 
April 2nd to April 4th, 2014 
  CARRIED 
 

 8.4  RETURNABLE BEVERAGE CONTAINER DEPOSIT REFUNDS 

STAFF CHRISTMAS 
PARTY - RECYCLING 
FUNDS 

MOTION: 14.03.130. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council rescind motion #13.10.612 which reads as follows: 
 “MOTION:  13.10.612. Moved by:  TOLLEFSON 

That Council authorize the use of funds from the collection of cans and bottles 
from Greenview facilities to support the annual Staff Christmas Party.” 

 CARRIED 
 

3



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 4 

 

 

 
 

 8.5  FIRE GUARDIAN APPOINTMENT 2014 

FIRE GUARDIAN 
FOR THE 2014 FIRE 
SEASON 
 

MOTION: 14.03.131.  Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council appoint Jeff Francis as Fire Guardian for the Municipal District of 
Greenview No. 16 for the 2014 fire season. 
 CARRIED 
 

 8.6  LITTLE SMOKY BRIDGE 

LETTER - CNRL RE: 
BRIDGE CROSSING 

MOTION: 14.03.132. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council direct Administration to respond to Canadian Natural Resources Ltd.’s 
request by sending a letter that Greenview will have no future interest in the bridge 
crossing at SW 6-69-21-W5M on Twp. Rd 690A.  
  CARRIED 
 

 8.7  BRUSH CLEARING 

BRUSH CLEARING MOTION: 14.03.133. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council approve administration to proceed with brush clearing prior to April 1, 
2014 on Range Road 234 off Twp. 700 to Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation and Twp. 704 
East of Range Road 233, Range Road 230 between Twp. 704 and Twp.712 and 
Range Road 10 off Twp. 710 and that funding for this be included in the 2014 
Budget. 
  CARRIED 
 

#4 
PUBLIC HEARING 

4.1  BYLAW 14-719 SW 29-70-24-W5M 

 Deputy Reeve Burton opened the Public Hearing regarding Bylaw 
 #14-719 
 

APPLICANT & 
PROPERTY OWNER 

Applicant    Patricia and Darcy Clarke 
Property Owner    Patricia and Darcy Clarke 
 

IN 
ATTENDENCE 

Manager, Planning & Development                              Sally Ann Rosson 
Planning & Development Coordinator   Gwen Charlton 
Applicant and Property Owner    Darcy Clarke 
 

INTRODUCTION The Chair asked each Council Member and staff to introduce themselves and asked 
Council Members if there were any reason that they should be disqualified from 
the hearing. Each Member’s reply was “there is none”. 
 

4



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 5 

 

 

PURPOSE OF THE 
HEARING 

The purpose of the Public Hearing was to provide Council with public input on the 
Land Use Amendment application to rezone 1.45 hectares/3.58 Acres +/- from 
Agriculture (A) to Country Residential Two (CR-2).  
 

APPLICANTS 
PROPOSAL 

Residential higher density The Applicant indicated that they are looking to 
subdivide an acreage off the subject parcel. 
 

QUESTION FROM 
COUNCIL TO 
APPLICANT 

The Chair called for any questions of the Applicant from Council.  
Councillor Dale Smith asked how a higher density was obtained on this quarter 
from previous. 
The representative from Planning & Development responded that there was four 
lot density transferred from the adjacent quarter from the SE of 29-70-24 onto this 
quarter allowing him eight lot density. This is a result of the Applicant’s adjacent 
quarter being in too close proximity to a landfill which prevents subdivision within 
on the adjacent parcel. The subdivision being proposed under this Bylaw would 
provide the applicant with seven lots in total.  
 

THOSE IN FAVOR The Chair requested that anyone who wished to speak in favour of the application 
come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

APPLICATION 
BACKGROUND 

Referrals were sent to relevant agencies and adjacent landowners, and the 
application was advertised in accordance with the requirements of the Municipal 
Government Act. 
 

THOSE AGAINST The Chair requested that anyone who wished to speak against the application 
come forward. 
None came forward. 
 

REFERRAL AGENCY 
AND ADJACENT 
LANDOWNERS 
COMMENTS 

The Manager, Planning & Development provided a summary of the responses from 
referral agencies and adjacent landowners. 
 
Alberta Transportation - no concerns. 
 
East Smoky Gas Coop - no concerns. 
 
Atco Electric responded -   not affected by this subdivision.  
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
COUNCIL 

The Chair called for any questions from Council.  
Councillor Dale Smith asked the applicant whether the remaining portion of this 
quarter is used for agriculture or recreation.  The applicant responded right now 
it’s used for agriculture.  It’s just a pasture. 
Councillor Bill Smith asked the Planning and Development representative for some 
history of why we would transfer from one quarter to another for density. 

5



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 6 

 

 

The Planning and Development representative responded there is an old landfill on 
the adjacent quarter and because of the landfill the applicant is not allowed 
residential development.  
 

QUESTIONS FROM 
APPLICANT OR 
PRESENTERS 

The Chair called for any questions from the Applicant or those that had spoken in 
favour or against the application with regards to the comments from Planning & 
Development, the referral agencies, or adjacent landowners. 
None was heard. 
 

APPLICANT FINAL 
COMMENTS 

The Chair called for any final comments from the Applicant. 
The Applicant had no further comments. 
 

FAIR AND 
IMPARTIAL 
HEARING 

The Chair asked the Applicant if they believed that they had received a fair and 
impartial hearing.  The Applicant responded “yes”. 
 

#5 
DELEGATION 

5.0 DELEGATIONS 

 5.1 DRAFT MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
 

INTRODUCTION The Chair asked each Council member and staff to introduce themselves. 
 

ATTENDANCE Dave McRae, Manager, ISL Engineering & Land Use Services based in Grande 
Prairie. 
 

PURPOSE OF THE 
DELEGATION 
 

Engaged by the Municipal District a few years ago to undertake a review of the 
Municipal Development Plan and give this Council an overview of the draft that’s 
been prepared to date.  To talk about the changes that have been made and 
confirmation from this Council before going to the general public with this.  
Basically to make sure that the MDP remains up to date. 
 

MUNICIPAL 
DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN 

MOTION: 14.03.134. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council accepts the Municipal Development Plan update for information as 
presented. 
   CARRIED 
 

#6  
Bylaws 

6.0  BYLAWS 
 

 6.1 BYLAW NO. 14-721 NE 28-69-22 W5M 
 

BYLAW 14-721 
FIRST READING 

MOTION: 14.03.135. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That the Council give First Reading to Bylaw No. 14-721 for Reeves to re-designate 
the lands from Agricultural District to Country Residential One District on NE 28-69-
22-W5M. 
 CARRIED 

6



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 7 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
DATE – APR. 8/14 

MOTION: 14.03.136. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That the Council schedule a Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 14-721 under Reeves to 
be held on April 8, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 
 CARRIED 
 

AMEND AGENDA – 
ALLOW BYLAW  
14-719 

MOTION: 14.03.137. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
That Council amend the agenda to allow Bylaw 14-719 under 6.3. 
  CARRIED 
 

 6.3 BYLAW 14-719 SW 29-70-24-W5 
 

BYLAW 14-719 
SECOND READING 

MOTION: 14.03.138. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 14-719, Clarke re-designating the 
lands from Agricultural (A) District to Country Residential Two (CR2) District within 
the SW 29-70-24-W5M. 
  CARRIED 
 

 8.8  MGA REVIEW SESSION 
 

MGA REVIEW 
CONSULTATIONS 

MOTION: 14.03.139. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That Council authorize all members of Council to attend the Municipal Government 
Act Review Consultations in Grande Prairie on April 4th, 2014. 
  CARRIED 
 

 8.9  REGIONAL COLLABORATION – TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

GREENVIEW 
REGIONAL 
PARTNERSHIP 
STEERING 
COMMITTEE – 
TERMS OF REF. 

MOTION: 14.03.140. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council approve the Greenview Regional Partnership Steering Committee 
Terms of Reference as presented. 
  CARRIED 
 

APPOINTMENT – 
GREENVIEW 
REGIONAL 
STEERING 
COMMITTEE  

MOTION: 14.03.141. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council appoint Reeve Gervais, Councillor Burton and Councillor Hay to the 
Greenview Regional Partnership Steering Committee. 
  CARRIED 
 

 8.10  GRAIN TRANSPORTATION 
 

MEETING – 
MINISTER OLSON 
RE: GRAIN 
TRANSPORTATION 

MOTION: 14.03.142. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council retroactively authorize any member of Council to attend the March 
7th, 2014 meeting with Minister Olson regarding grain transportation being held at 
the Ol Timer’s Cabin. 

7



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 8 

 

 

  CARRIED 
 

 8.11  GRANDE CACHE DOCTOR RECRUITMENT & RETENTION 
 

GRANDE CACHE 
DOCTOR 
RECRUITMENT AND 
RETENTION 
MEETINGS 

MOTION: 14.03.143. Moved by: COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
That Council approve the attendance of Councillor Delorme to meetings of the 
Grande Cache Doctor Recruitment and Retention Meetings. 
 

 Councillor Roxie Rutt vacated the meeting at 11:37 a.m. 
 

   CARRIED 
 

  
Councillor Roxie Rutt re-entered the meeting at 11:39 a.m. 
 

 Councillor Bill Smith vacated the meeting at 11:39 a.m. 
 

 Councillor Bill Smith re-entered the meeting at 11:40 a.m. 
 

BYLAW 14-719 
THIRD READING 

MOTION: 14.03.144. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 14-719, Clarke re-designating the lands 
from Agricultural (A) District to Country Residential Two (CR2) District within the SW 
29-70-24-W5M.  
  CARRIED 
 

 Deputy Reeve Burton called for recess at 11:55 a.m. 
 

 Deputy Reeve Burton reconvened the meeting at 1:01 p.m. 
 

 8.12 CAO’S REPORT 
 

CAO’S REPORT MOTION: 14.03.145. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council receive the CAO’s Report as information. 
   CARRIED 
 

 Councillor Bill Smith vacated the meeting at 1:10 p.m. 
 

 Councillor Bill Smith re-entered the meeting at 1:12 p.m. 
 

 Councillor Bill Smith vacated the meeting at 1:29 p.m. 
 

 Councillor Bill Smith re-entered the meeting at 1:31 p.m. 
 

8



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 9 

 

 

 Councillor Les Urness vacated the meeting at 1:36 p.m. 
 

 Councillor Les Urness re-entered the meeting at 1:43 p.m. 
 

 8.13  BUDGET 
 

2014 
OPERATIONAL & 
CAPITAL BUDGET 

MOTION: 14.03.146. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That Council approve the 2014 Operational and Capital Budget as presented. 
  CARRIED 
 

#9 
COUNCILLORS 
BUSINESS & 
REPORTS 
 

9.0  COUNCILLORS BUSINESS & REPORTS 

 9.2  MEMBERS’ REPORT:  Council provided an update on activities and events both 
attended and upcoming, including the following: 
 

 COUNCILLOR BILL SMITH 
Attended the Agricultural Service Board Meeting 
Attended the Community Futures Meeting 
Attended the RMRF Law Seminar 
Attended the Wapiti Corridor Management Plan 
Attended Bear smart 
Attended the Ag Meeting - RE: CN with MLA’s & Minister Chris Warkentin 
Attended the Special Budget Meeting 
 

 COUNCILLOR GEORGE DELORME 
Attended the Elders Council 
Attended the Special Budget Meeting 
 

 COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
Attended the Crooked Creek Recreation Board Meeting 
Attended the RMRF Law Seminar 
Attended the Special Budget Meeting 
  

 COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
Attended the Special Budget Meeting 
 

 COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
Attended the Agricultural Service Board Meeting 
Attended the Annual Smoky Applied Research & Demonstration Assoc. Meeting  
Attended the Special Budget Meeting 
 

 COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY: 
Attended the Greenview Regional Partnership Meeting 

9



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 10 

 

 

 

MIGHTY PEACE 
WATERSHED 
PARTNERSHIP 
ALLIANCE MEETING 

MOTION: 14.03.147. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council attend the Mighty Peace Watershed Partnership Alliance Meeting in 
Slave Lake. 
 CARRIED 
 

GENERAL MTG – 
ARCHIVES SOCIETY 

MOTION: 14.03.148. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That Council allow Deputy Reeve Tom Burton to attend the General Meeting of the 
Archives Society. 
  CARRIED 
 

 
 
 

COUNCILLOR TOM BURTON 
Attended the Audit Committee 
Attended the Greenview Regional Partnership Meeting 
Attended the RMRF Law Seminar 
Attended the Throne Speech 
Attended the Meeting with Minister Olsen, Drysdale and MLA McDonald 
Attended the Special Budget Meeting 
 

PROVINCIAL 
LIBRARY BOARD 
CONFERENCE 

MOTION: 14.03.149. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That any Council Member attend the Provincial Library Board Conference. 
  CARRIED 
 

#10 
CORRESPONDENCE 

 

10.0  CORRESPONDENCE: 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
LISTING 

MOTION: 14.03.150. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DAVE HAY 
That Council accept the correspondence listing as presented. 
 CARRIED 
 

# 11  
IN CAMERA 
 

11.0 IN CAMERA CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 

IN CAMERA - LEGAL MOTION: 14.03.151. Moved by: COUNCILLOR LES URNESS 
That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, this 
meeting goes in camera at 2:16 p.m. 
  CARRIED 
  

 11.1  LEGAL 
 

 11.2  LEGAL 
 

OUT OF CAMERA MOTION: 14.03.152. Moved by: COUNCILLOR DALE SMITH 
That, in compliance with Section 197(2) of the Municipal Government Act, this 
meeting come out of camera at 3:06 p.m. 

10



 Minutes of a Regular Council Meeting      March 11, 2014 
M.D. of Greenview No. 16 
Page 11 

 

 

  CARRIED 
 

#12 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

12.0  ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION: 14.03.153. Moved by: COUNCILLOR ROXIE RUTT 
That this meeting adjourn at 3:07 p.m. 
  CARRIED
    

 
__________________________________                                      ______________________________ 
CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER                                                      REEVE 

11



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Encana Presentation  
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Corporate Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council accept for information the presentation made by Encana. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Encana contacted Greenview with a request to give a presentation to Council in regards to their Operations and 
Development in the Greenview area. 
 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Encana is providing a presentation to the Town of Valleyview and Fox Creek as well, in an effort to keep all levels 
of local government informed. 
 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 

 N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Email Attachment 

12



From:                                         McAulay, Darci-Jane <Darci-Jane.McAulay@encana.com>
Sent:                                           Wednesday, March 19, 2014 4:25 PM
To:                                               Teresa Marin
Cc:                                               Sutherland, Mark
Subject:                                     Encana meeting
 
Hi Teresa,
Thanks for setting up our meeting with the MD next week. We look forward to the time together. In attendance will be Tyson
Pylypiw our Senior Manager of Stakeholder Relations and Road and Lease Construction,  John Remmer Water Manager, Mark
Sutherland Community Relations Advisor and me Darci-Jane McAulay Manager of Community Relations
We are still in the process of developing our presentation, and can bring it on a USB. Our outline for our presentation is below:

 
Darci-Jane McAulay

Group Lead, Community Relations

403-645-4611

 

 

This email communication and any files transmitted with it may contain

confidential and or proprietary information and is provided for the use of the

intended recipient only. Any review, retransmission or dissemination of this

information by anyone other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you

receive this email in error, please contact the sender and delete this

communication and any copies immediately. Thank you.

 

http://www.encana.com

13

http://www.encana.com/


 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
SUBJECT:  Bylaw No.13‐711 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  Tuesday, March‐25‐2014  CAO:  DM  MANAGER:  SAR 
DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning  GM/CFO:    PREPARER:    GC 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  A13‐011/ NE‐13‐70‐23‐W5      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:   
        FINANCIAL REVIEW:   

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 13‐711, re‐designating the lands within the NE‐13‐70‐23‐
W5 from Agricultural to Country Residential One. 
 
MOTION: That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 13‐711, re‐designating the lands within the NE‐13‐70‐23‐W5 
from Agricultural to Country Residential One. 
 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
To re‐designate 39.91 Acres from Agriculture (A) to Country Residential One (CR‐1).  
   
APPLICATION OVERVIEW: 
 
Applicant   Maurice & Judith Huet 
Property Owner   Maurice & Judith Huet 
Existing Parcel Size   39.91 ac +/‐ or 17.01 ha +/‐  
Purpose of Re‐designation   To create three (3) CR‐1 lots for residential use 
Ward   3 ‐ Valleyview 
Rural Area   Valleyview 
 
 
Applicable Policy and Regulations:  
Intermunicipal Development Plan:   N/A 
Municipal Development Plan:  Section 4.2 Country Residental 
Area Structure Plan:   N/A 
Land Use Bylaw:   Country Residential One (CR‐1) 

Policy and Procedures:   First Reading has been given and a Public Hearing scheduled for March 
25, 2014. 

 
Location & Geography:  

Closest Urban Center & Proximity:   4.3 km / 2.8 miles  East to: Valleyview 

14



 

2     Request for Decision 

Situated within 800 meters of HWY: 43  Yes  No  

Situated within Growth Centre:   Yes  No  

Situated in Urban Referral/Fringe Area   Yes  No  

 
Land Use and Development:  
Predominant Land Use on Property:   Agricultural 
Predominant Development on Property:   Single Family Dwelling 

Oil and Gas Facilities on Property/Adjacent: N/A 

Surrounding Land Uses:   Residential and  Industrial 
Proximity to Utilities:   Adjacent to: East Smoky Gas Pipeline 
 
Physical and Natural Features: 
Water bodies and Wetlands on Property:   N/A 
Topographical Constraints on Property:   Mixed 
Soil Characteristics:   Clay 
Vegetation and Drainage:  Cleared and Mixed Forest 
Potential for Flooding:   No potential for flooding noted during site visit. 
 
Planning & Development History: 

Prior LUB/SD/DP Applications: 
D98‐114 Residence and Garage 
D06‐257 Addition and Garage 
D13‐083 Residential Accessory Building 

Certificate of Title:  032 293 140 
Encumbrances on Title Affecting 
Application:  

East Smoky Gas Co‐op: Right‐of‐Way;  
 

 
 
Servicing & Improvements Proposed: 

Water Services:  Cistern                   Existing   Proposed 

Sewer Services:    Holding Tank        Existing   Proposed 
Storm water/Drainage Improvements:  N/A                     
Solid Waste Disposal:  N/A     

Approach/Road Access  RGE RD 230       Existing, to one lot only    
 
 
Suitability Assessment:  
Land Suitable for Intended Use  Yes  No  

15



 

Greenview, Alberta     3 

Compatible with Surrounding Land Uses  Yes  No  

Appropriate Legal and Physical Access  Yes  No    

Complies with IDP/MDP/ASP/LUB 
Requirements  Yes  No  

 
 
Key Dates, Communications & Other Information:  
Application Submitted:   September 13, 2013 
Application Circulated:   September 17, 2013 
Supportive Information 
Requested/Submitted:    

Application Revised from Submission:   Yes  No 

Referral Comments:  

East Smoky Gas Co‐op, September 17, 2013:  
No concerns. 
 
M.D Public Works, September 20, 2013:  
 
Approach to Lot 2 is in place and meets MD standards. 
Lots 1 & 3 have no access and require approaches with min 500 mm x 
14 meter CSP culvert.  
Road widening is required on RGE RD 230.  
There are no drainage concerns. 
 
ATCO Gas, September 20, 2013:  
The Engineering and Design Department of ATCO Gas has reviewed the 
above named plan and this project is not in ATCO Gas franchise area 
and we do not have any pipelines in the area. 
 
Alberta Transportation, November 7, 2013:  
Alberta Transportation has no particular concerns with the Land Use 
Amendment. However, the proposed subdivision may be impacted by 
Highway 43 and 49 Alberta Transportation Realignment Functional 
Planning Study currently underway. This study is not expected to be 
finalized in the near future. 
 
Comment on Land Use Amendment should not be construed as the 
Department granting variance to the requirements of Section 14 of the 
Subdivision and Development Regulation. The Department will 
comment further when we receive the complete subdivision 
application referral from the Municipality. 
 

Objections Received and Addressed:   Yes  No objections received. 
 

 
 

16



 

4     Request for Decision 

 
 
   
DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
 
 
OPTION ONE:  
(This motion indicates support) 

 
That the Reeve open and close the Public Hearing.  
 
That Council give second reading to Bylaw No 13‐711. re‐
designating the land within NE 13‐70‐23‐W5M.  
 
That Council give third reading to Bylaw No. 13‐711 re‐
designating the land within NE 13‐70‐23‐W5M.  

 
OPTION TWO: 
(This motion indicates additional 
information required to render a 
decision on the application) 
 

 
That the Council defer Bylaw No. 13‐711 re‐designating the 
lands within the NE 13‐70‐23‐W5M.  

 
OPTION THREE: 
(This motion indicates the 
application is not deemed suitable) 

 
That the Reeve open and close the Public Hearing.  
 
That Council give second reading to Bylaw No. 13‐711 re‐
designating the land within NE 13‐70‐23‐W5M (Recommend 
Refusal) 
 
That Council give third reading to Bylaw No. 13‐711 re‐
designating the land within NE 13‐70‐23‐W5M.  (Recommend 
Refusal) 
 

 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Bylaw No. 13‐711 and Schedule "A" (Proposed Amendment Map) 
 Land Use Amendment Application 
 Ownership/Location Map 
 Referral Comments   

17



 

Greenview, Alberta     5 

 

BYLAW NO. 13‐711 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  

   

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of 
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 03‐396, being the Land Use Bylaw for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

PURSUANT TO Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M‐26, R.S.A. 
2000, as Amended, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, 

enacts as follows: 

1. That Map No. 224 in the Land Use Bylaw, being Bylaw No. 03‐396, be added to  
reclassify the following area: 

A Portion of  
the Northeast quarter of Section Thirteen(13) 

Within Township Seventy (70) 
Range Twenty‐three  (23), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR‐1" District, 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached. 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 
 

Read a first time this ___________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a second time this _________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a third time and finally passed this _______ day of _____________, A.D., __________. 

 
 

            ________________________________ 
    REEVE  

 
 

            ________________________________ 
          CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 
 

 
  

18



 

6     Request for Decision 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

To Bylaw No. 13‐711  
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

A Portion of  
the Northeast quarter of Section Thirteen(13) 

Within Township Seventy (70) 
Range Twenty‐three  (23), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR‐1" District, 
As identified below: 

 
 

 
  

19



 

Greenview, Alberta     7 

Land Use Amendment Application  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

20



 

8     Request for Decision 

Ownership/Location Map 
 
   

21



 

Greenview, Alberta     9 

Referral Comments 
East Smoky Gas Co‐op 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

   

22



 

10     Request for Decision 

 
 

Referral Comments 
M.D Public Works 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

23



 

Greenview, Alberta     11 

 
Referral Comments 

ATCO Gas 
 
 

   

24



 

12     Request for Decision 

Referral Comments 
Alberta Transportation 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

25



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Bylaw No.13‐714 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  Tuesday, March‐25‐2014  CAO:  DM  MANAGER:  SAR 
DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning  GM/CFO:    PREPARER:    GC 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  A12‐011/ NW‐26‐71‐26‐W5      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:   
        FINANCIAL REVIEW:   

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
 
MOTION: That Council give Second Reading  to Bylaw No. 13‐714,  for Cauchie  re‐designating  the  lands  to Rural 
Commercial District within the NW 26‐71‐26‐W5. 
 
MOTION:  That  Council  give  Third  Reading  to  Bylaw  No.  13‐714,  for  Cauchie  re‐designating  the  lands  Rural 
Commercial District within the NW 26‐71‐26‐W5. 
 

   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:     
To re‐designate 36.46 hectares/ 89.00  acres from Agriculture (A) to Rural Commercial (RC).  
   
APPLICATION  OVERVIEW:  
 
Applicant   Florence & Rennie  Cauchie 
Property Owner   Florence Cauchie 
Existing Parcel Size   36.46 hectares/ 89.00  acres 
Purpose of Re‐designation   To re‐designate the remainder of the quarter to rural commercial 
Ward   7 ‐ Crooked Creek 
Rural Area   Crooked Creek  
 

Key Dates, Communications & Other Information:  
Application Submitted:   December 4 2013    
Application Circulated:   January 30 2014 
Supportive Information 
Requested/Submitted:    

Application Revised from Submission:   Yes  No     
Referral & Adjacent Landowner  
Comments:  
 
 
 
 
 

East Smoky Gas Co‐op, June 20, 2013: No Objections. 
ATCO Electric, July 12, 2013: No Objections. 
Alberta Transportation,  July 16, 2013: Alberta Transportation has no 
particular  concerns  with  the  Land  Use  Amendment.  However,  a 
Roadside  Development  Application  should  be  submitted  for 
development within the proposed lot. A Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) 
may be required for review and acceptance by the department. The TIA 

26



 

2     Request for Decision 

Continued,  and  any  required  improvements  to  the  highway  infrastructure  to 
accommodate development on  lands proposed to be rezoned shall be 
completed at no cost to the department. 
 The below are attached, under ATTACHMENTS: 
Colleen & Kevin Karockai 
Len and Tracey Burns 
Darwin Clegg 
Tommy Loewen 
Environment and Sustainable Resource Development 
 

Objections Received and Addressed:   Yes  No.    Two  adjacent  landowners  objections  received  and 
included in package. 

 
Applicable Policy and Regulations:  
Intermunicipal Development Plan:   N/A 
Municipal Development Plan:  Section 6.3 Commerical Development 
Area Structure Plan:   N/A 
Land Use Bylaw:   Rural Commercial (RC) 

Policy and Procedures:   First Reading has been given and a Public Hearing scheduled for March 
25, 2014. 

 
   
DISCUSSION: 
 
Location & Geography:  

Closest Urban Center & Proximity:   2.6 km / 1.7 miles  North of: Ridgevalley 

Situated within 800 meters of HWY:   Yes  No  HWY 43 

Situated in Urban Referral/Fringe Area   Yes  No  

 
Land Use and Development:  
Predominant Land Use on Property:   Agricultural 

Predominant Development on Property:   Agricultural use with site constraints of a reclaimed Landfill that would 
affect any future residential development. 

Oil and Gas Facilities on Property/Adjacent: N/A 

Surrounding Land Uses:   Commerical; Crooked Creek Store 
 Proximity to Utilities:   Adjacent to: MD Greenview’s Water Fill Station 
 
Physical and Natural Features: 
Waterbodies and Wetlands on Property:   Creek 
Topographical Constraints on Property:   Flat 

27



  

Greenview, Alberta     3 

Soil Characteristics:   Grey Wooded 
Vegetation and Drainage:  Cropped and Tree stands 
Potential for Flooding:   No potential for flooding. 
 
Planning & Development History: 
Prior LUB/SD/DP Applications:  N/A 
Certificate of Title:  122 344 809 +1 

Encumbrances  on  Title  Affecting 
Application:  

East Smoky Gas Co‐op: Right‐of‐Way;  
Paul Roger & Shirley Ann Roy; Right‐of‐Way 
Alberta Power Limited: Right‐of‐Way; 
ATCO Electric: Right‐of‐Way; 
MD of Greenview;  Development Agreement 

 
 
Servicing & Improvements Proposed: 

Water Services:  None      

Sewer Services:   None     

Stormwater/Drainage Improvements:  N/A      

Solid Waste Disposal:  N/A      

Approach/Road Access  HWY 43       Existing   Proposed 

RGE RD 262     Existing   Proposed 
 
 
Suitability Assessment:  

Land Suitable for Intended Use  Yes  No  

Compatible with Surrounding Land Uses  Yes  No  

Appropriate Legal and Physical Access  Yes  No  

Complies with IDP/MDP/ASP/LUB 
Requirements  Yes  No  

   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Bylaw No. 13‐714  and Schedule "A" (Proposed Amendment Map) 
 Land Use Amendment Application 
 Ownership/Location Map 
 Concept Plan   
 Adjacent Land Owner Comments x 4 
 Environment and Sustainable Resource Development ‐ Comments   

28



 

4     Request for Decision 

 

BYLAW NO. 13‐714 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  

 

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of  
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 03‐396, being the Land Use Bylaw for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

PURSUANT TO Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M‐26, R.S.A. 
2000, as Amended, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, 

enacts as follows: 

That Map No. 35 in the Land Use Bylaw, being Bylaw No. 03‐396, be added to  
reclassify the following area: 

A Portion of 
the Northwest quarter of Section Twenty‐six (26) 

Within Township Seventy‐one (71) 
Range Twenty‐six (26), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A"  to Rural Commercial "RC", 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached. 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 
 

Read a first time this ___________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a second time this _________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a third time and finally passed this _______ day of _____________, A.D., __________. 

 
 
            ________________________________ 
            REEVE  
 
 
            ________________________________ 
            CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 
 

 

   

29



  

Greenview, Alberta     5 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

To Bylaw No. 13‐714  
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

A Portion of   
the Northwest quarter of Section Twenty‐six (26) 

Within Township Seventy‐one (71) 
Range Twenty‐six (26), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" to Rural Commercial "RC", 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached, 

As identified below: 
 

 

 
  

30



 

6     Request for Decision 

Land Use Amendment Application  
   

 

 
 

 
 

31



  

Greenview, Alberta     7 

 
Ownership/Location Map   

 

 
 
 

32



 

8     Request for Decision 

Concept Plan 

33



  

Greenview, Alberta     9 

Concept Plan Continued 

34



 

10     Request for Decision 

Concept Plan Continued 

 

 

35



  

Greenview, Alberta     11 

Concept Plan Continued 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36



 

12     Request for Decision 

Concept Plan Continued 
 

 

 

 

 

37



  

Greenview, Alberta     13 

ADJACENT LANDOWNER(S) COMMENTS: 

 

38



 

14     Request for Decision 

Continued . . . . ADJACENT LANDOWNER COMMENTS: 

 

 

39



  

Greenview, Alberta     15 

 

Continued . . . . ADJACENT LANDOWNER COMMENTS: 

 

 
 
   

40



 

16     Request for Decision 

Continued . . . . ADJACENT LANDOWNER COMMENTS: 

 

 

41



  

Greenview, Alberta     17 

Continued . . . . ADJACENT LANDOWNER COMMENTS: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



 

18     Request for Decision 

Continued . . . . ADJACENT LANDOWNER COMMENTS: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

43



  

Greenview, Alberta     19 

 
 

Continued . . . . ADJACENT LANDOWNER COMMENTS: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

44



 

20     Request for Decision 

Environment and Sustainable Resource Development ‐ Comments 
 

 

 

45



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
SUBJECT:  Bylaw No. 14‐718 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  Tuesday, March‐25‐2014  CAO:  DM  MANAGER:  SAR 
DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning  GM/CFO:    PREPARER:  GC 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  A13‐014 / W1/2 6‐72‐26‐W5M      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:   
        FINANCIAL REVIEW:   

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
   
MOTION: That Council give Second Reading to Bylaw No. 14‐718, re‐designating the lands within the W1/2 6‐72‐
26‐W5M. 
 
MOTION: That Council give Third Reading to Bylaw No. 14‐718, re‐designating the lands within the W1/2 6‐72‐26‐
W5M. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
To re‐designate 4.12 Hectares or 10.17 Acres from Agriculture (A)  to Country Residential One (CR‐1).  
   
APPLICATION OVERVIEW: 
 
Applicant   Della Thorpe as appointed Power of Attorney for Elizabeth Robertson. 
Property Owner   Elizabeth Robertson 
Existing Parcel Size   4.12ha or 10.17ac +/‐  
Purpose of Re‐designation   Subdivision of existing yard site. 
Ward   6 ‐ DeBolt / Puskwaskau 
Rural Area   DeBolt 
 
 
Applicable Policy and Regulations:  
Intermunicipal Development Plan:   N/A 
Municipal Development Plan:  Section 4.2 Country Residental 
Area Structure Plan:   N/A 
Land Use Bylaw:   Country Residential One (CR‐1) 

Policy and Procedures:   First Reading has been given and a Public Hearing scheduled for March 
25, 2014. 

   
 
Location & Geography:  

Closest Urban Center & Proximity:   2.2 km / 1.4 miles  Northwest to: DeBolt 

46



 

2     Request for Decision 

Situated within 800 meters of HWY:   Yes  No Hwy 43 

Situated in Urban Referral/Fringe Area   Yes  No  
 
Land Use and Development:  
Predominant Land Use on Property:   Agricultural 
Predominant Development on Property:   Single Family Dwelling 

Oil and Gas Facilities on Property/Adjacent: N/A 

Surrounding Land Uses:   Agricultural 

Proximity to Utilities:   Adjacent to: Alberta Power; East Smoky Gas Pipeline; ATCO Electric 
Power Line. 

 
Physical and Natural Features: 
Water bodies and Wetlands on Property:   N/A 
Topographical Constraints on Property:   Flat 
Soil Characteristics:   Mixed Soils 
Vegetation and Drainage:  Hayland 
Potential for Flooding:   No potential for flooding noted during site visit. 
 
Planning & Development History: 
Prior LUB/SD/DP Applications:  None 
Certificate of Title:  132 032 638 

Encumbrances on Title Affecting 
Application:  

Alberta Power Limited: Right‐of‐Way;  
East Smoky Gas Co‐op: Right‐of‐Way; and 
ATCO Electric: Right‐of‐Way 

 
 
Servicing & Improvements Proposed: 

Water Services:  Water Well        Existing   Proposed 

Sewer Services:    Pump Out System       Existing   Proposed 
Stormwater/Drainage Improvements:  N/A     
Solid Waste Disposal:  N/A      

Approach/Road Access  RGE RD 10       Existing   Proposed 

 
 
 
Suitability Assessment:  

Land Suitable for Intended Use  Yes  No  

Compatible with Surrounding Land Uses  Yes  No  

Appropriate Legal and Physical Access  Yes  No  

47



 

Greenview, Alberta     3 

Complies with IDP/MDP/ASP/LUB 
Requirements  Yes  No  

 
 
Key Dates, Communications & Other Information:  
Application Submitted:   December 19 2013 
Application Circulated:   January 21 2013 
Supportive Information 
Requested/Submitted:   For Future Subdivision 

Application Revised from Submission:   Yes  No  

Referral Comments:  

East Smoky Gas Co‐op, January 21, 2014: January 23, 2014: No 
Objection. 
ATCO Electric, March 5, 2014: ATCO will require 2 easements as per 
the attached mark up. 

Objections Received and Addressed:   Yes  No objections received. 
 
   
DISCUSSION / OPTIONS / BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
 
OPTION ONE:  
(This motion indicates support) 

 
That the Reeve open and close the Public Hearing.  
 
That Council give second reading to Bylaw No 14‐718. re‐
designating the land within SW 06‐72‐26‐W5M.  
 
That Council give third reading to Bylaw No. 14‐718 re‐
designating the land within SW 06‐72‐26‐W5M.  

 
OPTION TWO: 
(This motion indicates additional 
information required to render a 
decision on the application) 
 

 
That the Council defer Bylaw No. 14‐718 re‐designating the 
lands within the SW 06‐72‐26‐W5M.  

 
OPTION THREE: 
(This motion indicates the 
application is not deemed suitable) 

 
That the Reeve open and close the Public Hearing.  
 
That Council give second reading to Bylaw No. 14‐718 re‐
designating the land within SW 06‐72‐26‐W5M.  (Recommend 
Refusal) 
 
That Council give third reading to Bylaw No. 14‐718 re‐
designating the land within SW 06‐72‐26‐W5M.  (Recommend 
Refusal) 
 

   

48



 

4     Request for Decision 

   
 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Bylaw No. 14‐718 and Schedule "A" (Proposed Amendment Map # 65) 
 Land Use Amendment Application 
 Ownership/Location Map 
 Referral Notice 
 Referral Comments  
 
 

   

49



 

Greenview, Alberta     5 

 

BYLAW NO. 14‐718 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  

   

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of 
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 03‐396, being the Land Use Bylaw for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

PURSUANT TO Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M‐26, R.S.A. 
2000, as Amended, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, 

enacts as follows: 

1. That Map No. 65 in the Land Use Bylaw, being Bylaw No. 03‐396, be added to  
reclassify the following area: 

A Portion of  
the West half of Section Six(6) 

Within Township Seventy Two (72) 
Range Twenty‐six  (26), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR‐1" District, 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached. 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 
 

Read a first time this _________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a second time this _________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a third time and finally passed this _______ day of _____________, A.D., __________. 

 
 

            ________________________________ 
    REEVE  

 
 

            ________________________________ 
          CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 
 

 
   

50



 

6     Request for Decision 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

To Bylaw No. 14‐718  
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

A Portion of  
the West half of Section Six(6) 

Within Township Seventy Two (72) 
Range Twenty‐six  (26), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5M) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Country Residential One "CR‐1" District, 
As identified below: 

 
 

 
   

51



 

Greenview, Alberta     7 

Land Use Amendment Application  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

52



 

8     Request for Decision 

Land Use Amendment Application  
 

 
 

 

   

53



 

Greenview, Alberta     9 

Ownership/Location Map 
 

 

 

 

 

   

54



 

10     Request for Decision 

Notice to Referrals 

 

 

 
   

55



 

Greenview, Alberta     11 

Notice to Referrals 
 

 
 

 
   

56



 

12     Request for Decision 

Referral Comments 
East Smoky Gas Co‐op 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

57



 

Greenview, Alberta     13 

 
Referral Comments 

ATCO Electric 
 
 

 
 

58



 

14     Request for Decision 

 
Referral Comments 

ATCO Electric 

 

59



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

www.mdgreenview.ab.ca 

 
SUBJECT:  Bylaw No 13‐701 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 
MEETING DATE:  Tuesday, March‐25‐2014  CAO:  MH    MANAGER:  SAR 
DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning  GM/CFO:    PREPARER:  SAR 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  A13‐004 / SE 20‐70‐22‐W5M      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:   
        FINANCIAL REVIEW:   

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council TABLE Second Reading to Bylaw No. 13‐701, re‐designating the lands within the SE 20‐70‐22‐
W5M subject to further information from Alberta Transportation and the Town of Valleyview. 
 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
To re‐designate 9.78 hectares / 24.7 Acres from Agriculture (A)  to Industrial (I) District. 
   
APPLICATION OVERVIEW: 
 
Applicant   Mar‐Rik Trucking LTD. 
Property Owner   Chatwin Jack & Lois 
Existing Parcel Size   9.78 Hectares / 24.7 Acres  
Purpose of Re‐designation   Future Industrial Shop & Office 
Ward   3 ‐ Valleyview 
Rural Area   Valleyview 
 
 
Applicable Policy and Regulations:  
Intermunicipal Development Plan:   Valleyview Intermunicipal Development Plan 
Municipal Development Plan:  Section 6.2 Industrial Development 
Area Structure Plan:   N/A 
Land Use Bylaw:   Industrial (I) District 

Policy and Procedures:  
Once Second & Third Readings are given; the owner/developer will be 
able to proceed with the Subdivision and Development Permit 
Applications. 

   
 
Location & Geography:  

Closest Urban Center & Proximity:   1.2 km / 0.8 miles  West to: Valleyview 

Situated within 800 meters of HWY:   Yes  No Hwy 43 

60



 

2     Request for Decision 

Situated in Urban Referral/Fringe Area   Yes  No  
 
Land Use and Development:  
Predominant Land Use on Property:   Agricultural 
Predominant Development on Property:   Vacant 

Oil and Gas Facilities on Property/Adjacent: N/A 

Surrounding Land Uses:   Agricultural, Rural Commercial & Residential 
Proximity to Utilities:   On Property: Utility Right of Way, Fiber Optic Cable (westerly) 
 
Physical and Natural Features: 
Water bodies and Wetlands on Property:   N/A 
Topographical Constraints on Property:   Flat 
Soil Characteristics:   Mixed Soils 
Vegetation and Drainage:  Creek located to the north 
Potential for Flooding:   No potential for flooding. 
 
Planning & Development History: 
Prior LUB/SD/DP Applications:  LUB Amendment – Revised May 20, 2013 
Certificate of Title:  022 417 743 

Encumbrances on Title Affecting 
Application:  

Alberta Power Limited: Right‐of‐Way;  
East Smoky Gas Co‐op: Right‐of‐Way; and 
Alberta Government Telephones: Right‐of‐way 

 
 
Servicing & Improvements Proposed: 

Water Services:  None        Existing   Proposed: Holding Tanks 

Sewer Services:    None       Existing   Proposed: Holding Tanks 
Stormwater/Drainage Improvements:  N/A     
Solid Waste Disposal:  N/A  

Approach/Road Access  TWP 703       Existing   Proposed 

 
Suitability Assessment:  

Land Suitable for Intended Use 
  

Yes  No  

Compatible with Surrounding Land Uses 

 

 Yes  No Existing Rural Commercial Lot immediately to east & 
two residential lots on adjacent quarter west. 

Appropriate Legal and Physical Access 
 

Yes  No From Service Road frontage 

61



 

Greenview, Alberta     3 

Complies with IDP/MDP/ASP/LUB 
Requirements  Yes  No  See Comments in Agenda 

 
Key Dates, Communications & Other Information:  
Application Submitted:   March 13, 2013  
Application Circulated:   May 23 2013 & February 28, 2014 (Notification of Hearings) 
Supportive Information 
Requested/Submitted:   For Future Subdivision 

Application Revised from Submission:   Yes  No Revised May 20, 2013 

Referral Comments:  

Alberta Envrionment & Sustainable Resource Development, May 22, 
2013: 
The act of subdividing land or rezoning it is not in itself a concern. 
However, the activities associated with the development of and 
operation of the land must comply with existing legislation (Water Act).
 
Public Works, May 24, 2013: 
Needs approach constructed to M.D Industrial Standards with a 500 x 
16 CSP. 
 
ATCO Gas, May 28, 2013: 
No pipelines in the area. 
 
Town of Valleyview, January 13, 2014 
“In accordance with the Notice of Public Hearing on the above 
mentioned Bylaw, the Town of Valleyview hereby object to the 
rezoning of the proposed lands for the following reasons: 

1. According to the Intermuncipal Development Plan, section 
6.10, lands industrial use proposed within the Plan Area would 
not be allowed unless there are resolutions by both Councils 
supporting the development.  The Town has not been officially 
for support of this development.   

2. Section 7.2.2 of the MD of Greenview Municipal Development 
Plan, it states that the MD shall not approve any development 
proposal in contravention of an Intermuncipal Development 
Plan without an amendment to the IDP. 

Therefore, by means of this letter, the Town of Valleyview strongly 
object to the proposed Rezoning Bylaw to industrial use.” 

Objections Received and Addressed:   Yes  No.  See attached letters of objection attached. 
 
   

 
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
   

62



 

4     Request for Decision 

ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Public Hearing Agenda Procedure 
 Bylaw No. 13‐701 and Schedule "A" (Proposed Amendment Map) 
 Land Use Amendment Application, Page 8 
 Concept Plan, Page 9 
 Advisement of Public Hearing, Page 10 
 Ownership/Location Map, Page 11 
 Adjacent Land Owners Comments / Wirth, Pages 12‐17  Dated January 10, 2014 
 Adjacent Land Owner Comments / Armeneau, Pages 18‐20 Dated January 10, 2014 
 Adjacent Land Owner Comments / Anderson, Page 21 Dated March 11, 2014 
 Notice to Adjacent Land Owners (Sample Letter), Page 22 Sent December 10, 2013 
 Comments Received From the Town of Valleyview, Pages 23‐26 Dated January 13, 2014 
 Adjacent Land Owner Comments / Armeneau, Pages 27‐32 
 Adjacent Land Owner Letter / Wirth, Pages 33‐41 
 Surface Rights Law Office, Pages 42‐46 
 Adjacent Land Owner Comments / Armeneau, Pages 47‐52 
 Adjacent Land Owner Comments / Soderquist, Page 53 
 Adjacent Land Owner Comments / Wirth, Page 54‐55 
 Planning & Development Response and Final Comments, Pages 54‐63 
 

 
   

63



 

Greenview, Alberta     5 

 
 
 
 
5     Request for Decision 
 
 
1.  Chair: 

  a) Calls the meeting to order. 
  b) Introduces the Council, Staff and Applicant(s) attending. 
  c) Asks the guests to sign the registration sheet. 
       d) Calls on Legislative Services to explain the purpose of the hearing. 
  e) Asks each board member if there was if there was any reason that they should be disqualified from hearing this case.  
  f) Asks applicant(s) if there was any objection or concern with any member sitting on the Board. 
   

2.  Planning & Development Department: 
  a) Introduce the application for designation of said lands included in the agenda package, the application, location map, 

aerial information and site map. The legislative requirements have been met including advertising and notifications being 
sent to referral agencies and adjacent Landowners.  

 

3.  Chair: 
  a) Asks Applicant(s) or Agent to explain the proposed use of the land. 
 
4.  Applicant(s): 
  a) Addresses the proposed use of the land. 
 
5.  Chair: 
  a) Asks for any questions from Council. 

 
6.  Chair: asks if anyone wishes to Speak In‐Favor of the Application: 
  a) Please have speaker state their name. 
  b) Asks if any further questions from Council. 
 
7.  Chair: asks if anyone wishes to Speak Against the Application: 
  a) Please have speaker state their name. 
  b) Asks if any further questions from Council. 
 
8.     Chair: asks Planning & Development Department for Comments and Closing Remarks: 

a) Planning & Development Department: 
Read letters from referral agencies and any adjacent landowner comments which have responded and provides their closing 
remarks.  

 
9.  Chair: 
  a) Opens the floor to questions from Council 
  b) Asks if anyone has questions regarding agency referrals or staff comments. 
 
10.  Chair: 
  A) Asks the Applicant(s) if they have any final comments. 
  b) Asks if the applicant(s) feels if they have had a fair and impartial hearing. 
  Applicant(s):  Responds 
 
11.  Chair: 
  a) States; Council will render a decision as soon as possible. 
     
12.  Chair:   
  a) Adjourns the Public Hearing. 

PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA PROCEDURE 
LAND USE AMENDMENT PUBLIC HEARING BYLAW NO. 13‐701 

Land Owners: Jack & Lois Chatwin 
Tuesday, March‐25‐2014 at 10:00 a.m. 
From Agriculture (A)  to Industrial (I).  

SE 20‐70‐22‐W5M 

64



 

6     Request for Decision 

 

 

BYLAW NO. 13‐701 
of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  

   

A Bylaw of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of 
Alberta, to amend Bylaw No. 03‐396, being the Land Use Bylaw for the 

Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 

PURSUANT TO Section 692 of the Municipal Government Act, being Chapter M‐26, R.S.A. 
2000, as Amended, the Council of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, duly assembled, 

enacts as follows: 

1. That Map No. 19 in the Land Use Bylaw, being Bylaw No. 03‐396, be added to  
reclassify the following area: 

A Portion of   
the Southeast quarter of Section Twenty(20) 

Within Township Seventy (70) 
Range Twenty‐two  (22), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Industrial "I" District, 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached, 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect upon the day of final passing. 
 
 

Read a first time this    11th day of February, A.D., 2013. 
 

Read a second time this _________ day of _____________, A.D., _________. 
 

Read a third time and finally passed this _______ day of _____________, A.D., __________. 

 
 

            ________________________________ 
    REEVE  

 
 

            ________________________________ 
          CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 

 
 

 
   

65



 

Greenview, Alberta     7 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

To Bylaw No. 13‐701  
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

A Portion of   
the Southeast quarter of Section Twenty(20) 

Within Township Seventy (70) 
Range Twenty‐two  (22), West of the Fifth Meridian  (W5) 

Is reclassified from Agriculture "A" District to Industrial "I" District, 
As identified on Schedule “A” attached, 

As identified below: 
 

 

 
   

66



 

8     Request for Decision 

Land Use Amendment Application  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

67



 

Greenview, Alberta     9 

 

 

 

 

 

68



 

10     Request for Decision 

Public Hearing Advertisement 

 

 

 

 

 

69



 

Greenview, Alberta     11 

Ownership/Location Map: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70



 

12     Request for Decision 

 

71



 

Greenview, Alberta     13 

 

72



 

14     Request for Decision 

 

73



 

Greenview, Alberta     15 

 

74



 

16     Request for Decision 

 

75



 

Greenview, Alberta     17 

 

76



 

18     Request for Decision 

 

77



 

Greenview, Alberta     19 

 

78



 

20     Request for Decision 

 

79



 

Greenview, Alberta     21 

 
Adjacent Landowner Comments: 

 

 

80



 

22     Request for Decision 

 

 

81



 

Greenview, Alberta     23 

 

82



 

24     Request for Decision 

 

83



 

Greenview, Alberta     25 

 

84



 

26     Request for Decision 

 

85



 

Greenview, Alberta     27 

   

86



 

28     Request for Decision 

 
   

87



 

Greenview, Alberta     29 

 
   

88



 

30     Request for Decision 

   

89



 

Greenview, Alberta     31 

   

90



 

32     Request for Decision 

 

91



 

Greenview, Alberta     33 

 
 

   

92



 

34     Request for Decision 

 
 

   

93



 

Greenview, Alberta     35 

 
 

   

94



 

36     Request for Decision 

 

 
 

   

95



 

Greenview, Alberta     37 

 
 

   

96



 

38     Request for Decision 

 
 

   

97



 

Greenview, Alberta     39 

 
 

   

98



 

40     Request for Decision 

 
 

   

99



 

Greenview, Alberta     41 

 

100



 

42     Request for Decision 

 
 

   

101



 

Greenview, Alberta     43 

 
 

   

102



 

44     Request for Decision 

 
   

103



 

Greenview, Alberta     45 

 
 

104



 

46     Request for Decision 

 
   

105



 

Greenview, Alberta     47 

 
   

106



 

48     Request for Decision 

 
   

107



 

Greenview, Alberta     49 

 
   

108



 

50     Request for Decision 

 
   

109



 

Greenview, Alberta     51 

 
   

110



 

52     Request for Decision 

 
   

111



 

Greenview, Alberta     53 

 
 

112



 

54     Request for Decision 

 
 
   

113



 

Greenview, Alberta     55 114



 

56     Request for Decision 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT RESPONSE: 
 
Throughout the Municipal District the scope of development ranges from home‐based businesses to major industrial 
and commercial industries.  Businesses grow from a home‐based business and the applicant is looking to re‐locate to 
an area to suit their needs for future expansion of a tank truck shop and office facility.  It is common practise for a 
trucking operation to locate this type of development adjacent a four‐lane primary highway due to traffic flow and 
infrastructure requirements. 
 
Further consideration may be given to the fact that there is an existing Rural Commercial parcel immediately east of 
this proposal within the same quarter section. 
 
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN: 
 
Section 6.2 Industrial Development: outlines the types of industry which may be supported in the MD include those 
that: 
  ” a)  Cater to the needs of agriculture, forestry or natural resource extraction industries; 

b)  Have comparatively large land requirements; 
c)  Are not suited to an urban area; 
d)  Do not  conflict with adjacent uses  in  terms of appearance, emissions, noise or  traffic generation, unless 

suitable buffers are provided; 
e)  Are located on sites that are suitable for the proposed development in terms of soil stability, groundwater 

level and drainage; and 
f) Have minimal servicing requirements.” 

 
Section 6.3 supports the development of highway commercial and  local commercial developments at appropriate 
locations near existing commercial sites. 
 
LAND USE BYLAW: 
 
Under SECTION 2 DEFINITIONS of the Land Use Bylaw, “DANGEROUS GOODS” means dangerous goods as defined in 
the Dangerous Goods Transportation and Handling Act.   Please note that  if any dangerous goods were to ever be 
stored on site, it would need to be approved by Provincial and Federal authorities. 
 
The M.D. cannot approve development which is in contravention with the Land Use Bylaw.  The types of development 
that are allowed can be found in the Bylaw for each specific District, and are listed under Permitted and Discretionary 
Uses.  If an applicant proposes a development which does not fall under the Permitted or Discretionary Uses for that 
District, they must first apply for a Land Use Amendment to change the zoning. Therefore, a Land Use Amendment 
must first be approved, amending the Land Use Bylaw, before development can commence operation. 
 
The Industrial District allows the proposed Trucking Operation as a Discretionary Use under the MD’s current Land 
Use Bylaw. 
 
In regards to industrial type operations adjacent to provincial highways, all applications for Land Use Amendments, 
Subdivisions and Developments adjacent  to provincial highways, must be circulated  to Alberta Transportation  for 
comment and approval. Alberta Transportation has the authority to refuse such applications if it is deemed unsuitable. 
   

115



 

Greenview, Alberta     57 

 
VALLEYVIEW INTERMUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN (VVIDP): 
 
VVIDP Section 6.10 States: Notwithstanding Policies 6.1 to 6.9, should an industrial use be proposed within the Plan 
area which would  not  be  otherwise  allowed  by  this  Plan,  the  use  may  be  permitted  provided  that  there  are 
resolutions from both Councils supporting the proposed development and amendments to the appropriate Land Use 
Bylaws  are  approved.    However  the  proposed  use  is  allowed  under  the  plan,  and  therefore  does  not  require 
resolutions from both Councils. 
 
Industrial Development outlined in Section 6.5 states: 
“6.5  The types of  industry which may be supported  in all parts of the Plan area,  including Rural  Industrial and 
Industrial Reserve areas, are: 

(a)  Agricultural industries such as livestock auction marts, feed mills and bulk fertilizer, chemical and fuel 
distribution plants; 

(b)  Any commercial retail sales or servicing activity that  is part of or  incidental to the operation of the 
above agricultural industries; 

(c)  Natural resource extractive industries; and 
“(d)  Non‐labour intensive industries requiring large areas of land and have a minimal requirement for 

on‐site  improvements and municipal services, which may  include, but may not be  limited to, the 
outdoor storage and handling of pipe and drilling equipment.” 

The approving authority being Council, must decide if the proposed development qualifies under subsection (d) above, 
then it could be argued that the proposed rezoning could be approved if it is determined that the site is suitable to 
accommodate the proposed development. 
 
The Valleyview  Intermunicipal Development Plan – Future Land Use Map  identifies  the Agriculture Area which 
allows Industrial Uses as outlined below under: 
 
“Section 4.4  The subdivision of land for the following uses may be allowed on lands identified as Agriculture: 

(a)  First  parcels  out  of  an  unsubdivided  quarter  section,  including  farmstead  separations  (existing 
residences); 

(b)  Public uses; 
(c)  Up to four (4) parcels per quarter section for country residential use provided that the subdivision is 

not located on better agricultural land and that the land is suitable for the intended use.  This policy is 
also intended to apply to the resubdivision of existing country residential parcels (refer to Policy 5.6); 
and 

(d)  Industrial uses as provided for in Section 6.” 
 

Section 6.0, paragraph 2: 
 
“Certain industries such as gas plants and gravel extraction operations, industries requiring large storage areas with 
few employees on site, are more appropriate in rural areas.”  This plan accommodates this type of rural industrial 
development and suggests that rural industrial uses be directed to the south and east of the Town of Valleyview. 
 
Section  3.1  Goals,  also  states  “(c)  To  continue  to  diversify  the  Valleyview  area’s  economy  by  encouraging 
commercial, industrial, and institutional uses to locate in the Valleyview area.” 
 
From our discussion with the Owner/Operator; Mar‐Rik Trucking does not propose to store any dangerous goods one 
site, and is intended to be used as a trucking shop and office. 
 

”Section 6.1  The Town of Valleyview and the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 shall play an active role  in 
promoting industries to locate in the Valleyview area.”   

116



 

58     Request for Decision 

 
To  clarify,  Section  6.9  only  applies  to  re‐subdivided  existing  rural  industrial  lots, which  does  not  apply  to  this 
amendment as the land is not a “re‐subdivision of an existing rural industrial lots”. 
“Section 6.9  The re‐subdivision of an existing rural industrial lot may be permitted based on: 

(a)  Ability to provide on‐site services; 
(b)  Access availability; and 
(c)  Impact on surrounding land uses.” 

 
“Section 6.8 Rural industrial uses shall locate along a well‐developed road capable of handling industrial‐type 
traffic unless the Town, the Municipal District and the industry concerned can come to an agreement to upgrade 
necessary roadways to an acceptable standard.” 

The  developer  could  be  required  to  upgrade  roads  if  needed.    It  is  not  necessarily  a  requirement  that  a 
development be refused if the road is currently unable to serve the proposed use. 
 
The Applicant has requested an amendment to the Land Use Bylaw requiring re‐districting from Agriculture (A) District 
to Industrial (I) District of the property in question.  Section 14.8 applies to the amendment of the VVIDP, and not that 
of the M.D’s Land Use Bylaw. 
 
Section 14.7, “Where a dispute arises over interpretation or administration to the Plan, the Municipal District and the 
Town will attempt to resolve the issue through a joint meeting of the two Councils.” 
 
Land Use Amendment mapping has been provide  to give additional examples of other  Industrial and Commercial 
zoned properties within the immediate area. 
 
The Mar‐Rik  Trucking proposal must meet  the  legislative  requirements  as  set out by  the MD’s  current  planning 
documents. 
 
Due to the comments received from: 

1. Alberta  Transportation’s  Grande  Prairie  office  has  responded  to  the  proposal  and  has  forwarded  the 
Application to their Edmonton Office for review and they will need to provide their comments; and 

2. The Town of Valleyview, a joint meeting is be necessary to resolve the issue of the Town’s interpretation of 
the Valleyview Intermunicipal Development Plan should the MD Council support this proposed Amendment 
and prior to Council making a decision. 

 

117



 

Greenview, Alberta     59 118



 

60     Request for Decision  119



 

Greenview, Alberta     61 

EXAMPLES OF OTHER INDUSTRIAL/COMMERCIAL ZONED PROPERTIES 
WITHIN THE IMMEDIATE AREA 

 

120



 

62     Request for Decision 

IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO THE PROPOSAL 

 

121



 

Greenview, Alberta     63 

IMMEDIATELY WEST OF THE PROPOSAL 

 
   

122



 

64     Request for Decision 

 
IMMEDIATELY SOUTH OF THE PROPOSAL 

 
 

123



 

Greenview, Alberta     65 

SOUTH OF THE PROPOSAL 

 

124



 

66     Request for Decision 

WEST OF VALLEYVIEW 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

125



 

Greenview, Alberta     67 

 
IMMEDIATELY EAST OF THE PROPOSAL 

 
 

126



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  2014 Tax Rate Bylaw 14‐724 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Corporate Services/Finance  GM:  RO  PRESENTER:  DD 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council give first reading to the 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw 14‐724. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Municipal Government Act of Alberta, Section 353(1‐2) require Council to pass an Annual Property Tax Bylaw. 
The Property Tax Bylaw authorizes the Council to impose a tax in respect of property in the municipality to raise 
revenue  to  be  used  toward  the  payment  of  (a)  expenditures  and  transfers  set  out  in  the  budget  of  the 
municipality, and (b) the requisitions.  
 
Municipalities  are  required  by  provincial  law  to  collect  requisitions  on  behalf  of  the  school  and  senior 
foundations. The tax rates for school requisitions are set by the province, whereas, the tax rate for the seniors 
foundations are set based on the foundations previous year’s operational expenditures. Municipalities collect 
these revenues for and submit the revenues to the Province (schools) and the Seniors’ Foundations.  
 
The overall increase in the 2014 assessments multiplied by the 2013 tax rates gave Greenview a total revenue 
increase of $4,085,208. The increased funds were included in the 2014 Greenview Budget Summary provided to 
Council at the March 11, 2014 meeting. A copy of that summary is attached for Council’s information. 
 
The  current  estimated  reserves  is  $119,647,662.  As  per  information  of  the  former  CAO,  Mr.  Plamping, 
$29,000,000 of these reserves are earmarked for a utility corporation. Keeping the status quo on tax rate, there 
will be a draw down from reserves in the amount of $47,548,696 to balance the 2014 budget. As well, according 
to  discussion  held  by  Council  there  is  a  further  potential  of  draw  down  from  reserves  to  provide  an  extra 
$10,000,000 each to Fox Creek and Grande Cache. This will leave an estimated reserve of $23,098,966 if all of 
these activities take place during 2014. 
 
Based on the budget discussions with Council, Administration has developed a number of tax rate scenarios with 
the intention of raising funds to cover the increased 2014 operational expense. While it is understood that the 
increase  in operational expense may be covered by the 2013 tax rate multiplied by the property assessment, 
Administration is of the opinion that it is prudent to add a small increase to the mil rate instead of drawing all of 
the extra funds required to balance the operational and capital budget  from reserves. Attached  for Council’s 
consideration are a number of Tax Rate scenarios.  
 

127



 

2     Request for Decision 

 
The municipality reduced the residential/farmland mil rate in 2010 by .50 mils. Increased the mil rate in 2011 by 
.0788 mils and has since retained the same mil rate, as per Council’s decision. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
1)   Council may choose to continue with the 2013 tax rates or may choose a different combination of tax rate 
changes. 
 
The disadvantage of not increasing the tax rate, is that the reserves will be down by an additional 7 plus million 
dollars this year to balance the 2014 capital and operating budget.  Additionally, there may be a need for higher 
one  time  tax  rate  increase  in  the  future  if  the municipality does not  introduce an occasional  small  tax  rate 
increase over time. 
 
2)   Council may approve the 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw with an overall increase of .83 mils for all property categories 
within Greenview. 
     
The benefit of this option is that the increased cost of service delivery is spread over all property owners within 
Greenview.   Based on  this proposed  tax  rate  increase,  the  total  required  from  reserves  to balance  the 2014 
budget will be decreased from $47,548,696 to $40,561,911, a difference of $6,986,785.  
 
A disadvantage of not increasing the tax rate, is there will be an additional 7 million needed from reserves to 
balance the 2014 operational and capital budget. 
 
3)   Council may approve the 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw with a 1 mil increase to industry only. This will equate to an 
increase in revenue of $7,821,067 based on the 2014 assessment as of March 17, 2014.  
 
The benefit of  this option  is  the  increase of  the 1 mil will cover slightly more  than  the 2014 service delivery 
(operational) increase. With this tax rate increase, the total required from reserves to balance the 2014 budget 
will be $39,727,629. A difference of $7,821,067. 
   
As noted in option 2, a disadvantage of not increasing the tax rate is there will be an additional 7 million needed 
from reserves to balance the 2014 operational and capital budget. 
 
4)   Council may approve the 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw with an increase of .7 mils for Residential and Farmland; also 
with an increase of .85 mils for Linear, Non‐Residential, Machinery and Equipment and Live Electric Power. 
     
The benefit of this option is that the increased cost of service delivery (operational) is spread over all property 
owners  within  Greenview.  Although  this  is  a  smaller  increase  for  residential/farmland  vs  non‐
residential/farmland. With the proposed tax rate increase, the total required from reserves to balance the 2014 
budget will be $40,483,066 instead of $47,548,696. A difference of $7,065,630.  
 
5)   Council may wish to borrow funds from Albert Capital Finance Authority to cover the proposed $10,000,000 
investment  on  behalf  of  the  Valleyview  Multi‐Plex.  The  current  interest  rates  with  Alberta  Capital  Finance 
Authority for a 3 year term is 1.38%. Whereas, the average Long‐Term Fixed Income investment interest rate has 
averaged 3.4% historically. However Administration has been advised by the investment manager to budget at a 
2% interest rate for this investment in 2014.   
   

128



 

Greenview, Alberta     3 

   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
2014 Capital and Operational Budgets 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
Tax Rate Scenarios/ Potential 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw drafts/ Municipality Comparison Tax Rates 

129



 

 

 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
BYLAW NO. 14-724 

 
A BYLAW TO AUTHORIZE THE RATES OF TAXATION TO BE LEVIED AGAINST ASSESSABLE 

PROPERTY WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 FOR THE 2014 TAXATION 
YEAR 

 
 
Whereas, the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  has prepared and adopted 
detailed estimates of the municipal revenues and expenditures as required, at the 
council meeting held on March 11th, 2014; and 
 
Whereas, the estimated municipal expenditures and transfers set out in the budget for 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 for 2014 total $ 136,278,058; and 
 
Whereas, the estimated municipal revenues and transfers from all sources other than 
taxation is estimated at $ 72,401,117 and the balance of $ 63,876,941 is to be raised by 
general municipal taxation; and 
 
Whereas, the requisitions are: 
 
 Alberta School Foundation Fund (ASFF)  
  Residential/Farm land            1,393,701 
  Non-residential `         18,302,412 
 Opted Out School Boards  
  Residential/Farm land     56,666 
  Non-residential       2,031 

        _____________   

 Total School Requisitions          19,754,810 

 Requisition Allowance  MGA(359(2))              100,000 

 Seniors Foundation                908,785 
 
Whereas, the Greenview Council is required each year to levy on the assessed value of 
all property, tax rates sufficient to meet the estimated expenditures and the requisitions; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Council is authorized to classify assessed property, and to establish different 
rates of taxation in respect to each class of property, subject to the Municipal 
Government Act, Chapter M-26, Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000; and 
 
Whereas, the assessed value of all property in the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
as shown on the assessment roll is: 
         Assessment 
 
 Residential                   540,898,240 
 Non-residential               5,454,374,170 
 Farm land         55,848,750 
 Machinery and equipment              2,366,692,690 
 
                  8,417,813,850

130



 

 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE under the authority of the Municipal Government Act, the Council of 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta, enacts as follows: 
 
1. That the Chief Administrative Officer is hereby authorized to levy the following 
 rates of taxation on the assessed value of all property as shown on the 
 assessment roll of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16: 
 
 Tax Levy Assessment Tax Rate 
General Municipal 
          

Residential/Farm land 
Non-residential 

     

 
 

1,480,470 
     62,396,471 

  
 

596,746,990 
 7,821,066,860 

 
 

2.4809 
7.9780 

ASFF    
Residential/Farm land 1,393,701 572,361,807 2.4350 
Non-residential     18,302,412  5,577,792,948 3.2813 

    
Opted-Out School Boards    

Residential/Farm land     56,666 23,271,458 2.4350 
Non-residential        2,031      618,962 3.2813 

    
Requisition Allowance    100,000  5,950,213,290 0.0168 
    
Seniors Foundation   908,485  8,417,813,850 0.1080 
 
 
2. The minimum amount payable as property tax for general municipal purposes 
 shall be $20.00. 
 
3. That this bylaw shall take effect on the date of the third and final reading. 
 
 Read a first time on this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
 Read a second time on this ______ day of _____________, 2014. 
 
 Read a third time and passed on this ______ day of ____________, 2014. 
 
 
                       Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Reeve 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 

131



 

j:\sc\taxbylaw 3

If any portion of this bylaw is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must 
be severed and the remainder of the bylaw is deemed valid. 

132



 

 

 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
BYLAW NO. 14-724 

 
A BYLAW TO AUTHORIZE THE RATES OF TAXATION TO BE LEVIED AGAINST ASSESSABLE 

PROPERTY WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 FOR THE 2014 TAXATION 
YEAR 

 
 
Whereas, the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  has prepared and adopted 
detailed estimates of the municipal revenues and expenditures as required, at the 
council meeting held on March 11th, 2014; and 
 
Whereas, the estimated municipal expenditures and transfers set out in the budget for 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 for 2014 total $ 136,278,058; and 
 
Whereas, the estimated municipal revenues and transfers from all sources other than 
taxation is estimated at $ 65,414,331 and the balance of $ 70,863,727 is to be raised by 
general municipal taxation; and 
 
Whereas, the requisitions are: 
 
 Alberta School Foundation Fund (ASFF)  
  Residential/Farm land            1,393,701 
  Non-residential `         18,302,412 
 Opted Out School Boards  
  Residential/Farm land     56,666 
  Non-residential       2,031 

        _____________   

 Total School Requisitions          19,754,810 

 Requisition Allowance  MGA(359(2))              100,000 

 Seniors Foundation                908,785 
 
Whereas, the Greenview Council is required each year to levy on the assessed value of 
all property, tax rates sufficient to meet the estimated expenditures and the requisitions; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Council is authorized to classify assessed property, and to establish different 
rates of taxation in respect to each class of property, subject to the Municipal 
Government Act, Chapter M-26, Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000; and 
 
Whereas, the assessed value of all property in the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
as shown on the assessment roll is: 
         Assessment 
 
 Residential                   540,898,240 
 Non-residential               5,454,374,170 
 Farm land         55,848,750 
 Machinery and equipment              2,366,692,690 
 
                  8,417,813,850

133



 

 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE under the authority of the Municipal Government Act, the Council of 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta, enacts as follows: 
 
1. That the Chief Administrative Officer is hereby authorized to levy the following 
 rates of taxation on the assessed value of all property as shown on the 
 assessment roll of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16: 
 
 Tax Levy Assessment Tax Rate 
General Municipal 
          

Residential/Farm land 
Non-residential 

     

 
 

1,975,770 
    68,887,957 

  
 

596,746,990 
 7,821,066,860 

 
 

3.3109 
8.8080 

ASFF    
Residential/Farm land 1,393,701 572,361,807 2.4350 
Non-residential     18,302,412  5,577,792,948 3.2813 

    
Opted-Out School Boards    

Residential/Farm land     56,666 23,271,458 2.4350 
Non-residential        2,031      618,962 3.2813 

    
Requisition Allowance    100,000  5,950,213,290 0.0168 
    
Seniors Foundation   908,485  8,417,813,850 0.1080 
 
 
2. The minimum amount payable as property tax for general municipal purposes 
 shall be $20.00. 
 
3. That this bylaw shall take effect on the date of the third and final reading. 
 
 Read a first time on this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
 Read a second time on this ______ day of _____________, 2014. 
 
 Read a third time and passed on this ______ day of ____________, 2014. 
 
 
                       Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Reeve 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 

134



 

j:\sc\taxbylaw 3

If any portion of this bylaw is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must 
be severed and the remainder of the bylaw is deemed valid. 

135



 

 

 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
BYLAW NO. 14-724 

 
A BYLAW TO AUTHORIZE THE RATES OF TAXATION TO BE LEVIED AGAINST ASSESSABLE 

PROPERTY WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 FOR THE 2014 TAXATION 
YEAR 

 
 
Whereas, the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  has prepared and adopted 
detailed estimates of the municipal revenues and expenditures as required, at the 
council meeting held on March 11th, 2014; and 
 
Whereas, the estimated municipal expenditures and transfers set out in the budget for 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 for 2014 total $ 136,278,058; and 
 
Whereas, the estimated municipal revenues and transfers from all sources other than 
taxation is estimated at $ 64,580,050 and the balance of $ 71,698,008 is to be raised by 
general municipal taxation; and 
 
Whereas, the requisitions are: 
 
 Alberta School Foundation Fund (ASFF)  
  Residential/Farm land            1,393,701 
  Non-residential `         18,302,412 
 Opted Out School Boards  
  Residential/Farm land     56,666 
  Non-residential       2,031 

        _____________   

 Total School Requisitions          19,754,810 

 Requisition Allowance  MGA(359(2))              100,000 

 Seniors Foundation                908,785 
 
Whereas, the Greenview Council is required each year to levy on the assessed value of 
all property, tax rates sufficient to meet the estimated expenditures and the requisitions; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Council is authorized to classify assessed property, and to establish different 
rates of taxation in respect to each class of property, subject to the Municipal 
Government Act, Chapter M-26, Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000; and 
 
Whereas, the assessed value of all property in the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
as shown on the assessment roll is: 
         Assessment 
 
 Residential                   540,898,240 
 Non-residential               5,454,374,170 
 Farm land         55,848,750 
 Machinery and equipment              2,366,692,690 
 
                  8,417,813,850

136



 

 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE under the authority of the Municipal Government Act, the Council of 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta, enacts as follows: 
 
1. That the Chief Administrative Officer is hereby authorized to levy the following 
 rates of taxation on the assessed value of all property as shown on the 
 assessment roll of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16: 
 
 Tax Levy Assessment Tax Rate 
General Municipal 
          

Residential/Farm land 
Non-residential 

     

 
 

1,480,470 
    70,217,538 

  
 

596,746,990 
 7,821,066,860 

 
 

2.4809 
8.9780 

ASFF    
Residential/Farm land 1,393,701 572,361,807 2.4350 
Non-residential     18,302,412  5,577,792,948 3.2813 

    
Opted-Out School Boards    

Residential/Farm land     56,666 23,271,458 2.4350 
Non-residential        2,031      618,962 3.2813 

    
Requisition Allowance    100,000  5,950,213,290 0.0168 
    
Seniors Foundation   908,485  8,417,813,850 0.1080 
 
 
2. The minimum amount payable as property tax for general municipal purposes 
 shall be $20.00. 
 
3. That this bylaw shall take effect on the date of the third and final reading. 
 
 Read a first time on this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
 Read a second time on this ______ day of _____________, 2014. 
 
 Read a third time and passed on this ______ day of ____________, 2014. 
 
 
                       Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Reeve 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 

137



 

j:\sc\taxbylaw 3

If any portion of this bylaw is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must 
be severed and the remainder of the bylaw is deemed valid. 

138



 

 

 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 

 
BYLAW NO. 14-724 

 
A BYLAW TO AUTHORIZE THE RATES OF TAXATION TO BE LEVIED AGAINST ASSESSABLE 

PROPERTY WITHIN THE MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 FOR THE 2014 TAXATION 
YEAR 

 
 
Whereas, the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16  has prepared and adopted 
detailed estimates of the municipal revenues and expenditures as required, at the 
council meeting held on March 11th, 2014; and 
 
Whereas, the estimated municipal expenditures and transfers set out in the budget for 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 for 2014 total $ 136,278,058; and 
 
Whereas, the estimated municipal revenues and transfers from all sources other than 
taxation is estimated at $ 65,335,488 and the balance of $ 70,942,570 is to be raised by 
general municipal taxation; and 
 
Whereas, the requisitions are: 
 
 Alberta School Foundation Fund (ASFF)  
  Residential/Farm land            1,393,701 
  Non-residential `         18,302,412 
 Opted Out School Boards  
  Residential/Farm land     56,666 
  Non-residential       2,031 

        _____________   

 Total School Requisitions          19,754,810 

 Requisition Allowance  MGA(359(2))              100,000 

 Seniors Foundation                908,785 
 
Whereas, the Greenview Council is required each year to levy on the assessed value of 
all property, tax rates sufficient to meet the estimated expenditures and the requisitions; 
and 
 
Whereas, the Council is authorized to classify assessed property, and to establish different 
rates of taxation in respect to each class of property, subject to the Municipal 
Government Act, Chapter M-26, Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000; and 
 
Whereas, the assessed value of all property in the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
as shown on the assessment roll is: 
         Assessment 
 
 Residential                   540,898,240 
 Non-residential               5,454,374,170 
 Farm land         55,848,750 
 Machinery and equipment              2,366,692,690 
 
                  8,417,813,850

139



 

 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE under the authority of the Municipal Government Act, the Council of 
the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16, in the Province of Alberta, enacts as follows: 
 
1. That the Chief Administrative Officer is hereby authorized to levy the following 
 rates of taxation on the assessed value of all property as shown on the 
 assessment roll of the Municipal District of Greenview No. 16: 
 
 Tax Levy Assessment Tax Rate 
General Municipal 
          

Residential/Farm land 
Non-residential 

     

 
 

1,898,192 
    69,044,378 

  
 

596,746,990 
 7,821,066,860 

 
 

3.1809 
8.8280 

ASFF    
Residential/Farm land 1,393,701 572,361,807 2.4350 
Non-residential     18,302,412  5,577,792,948 3.2813 

    
Opted-Out School Boards    

Residential/Farm land     56,666 23,271,458 2.4350 
Non-residential        2,031      618,962 3.2813 

    
Requisition Allowance    100,000  5,950,213,290 0.0168 
    
Seniors Foundation   908,485  8,417,813,850 0.1080 
 
 
2. The minimum amount payable as property tax for general municipal purposes 
 shall be $20.00. 
 
3. That this bylaw shall take effect on the date of the third and final reading. 
 
 Read a first time on this ____ day of __________, 2014. 
 
 Read a second time on this ______ day of _____________, 2014. 
 
 Read a third time and passed on this ______ day of ____________, 2014. 
 
 
                       Municipal District of Greenview No. 16 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Reeve 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Chief Administrative Officer 
 
 
 
 

140



 

j:\sc\taxbylaw 3

If any portion of this bylaw is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, then the invalid portion must 
be severed and the remainder of the bylaw is deemed valid. 

141



TAX BYLAW MUNICIPAL RATE COMPARISONS: 

GREENVIEW 
Tax Rate Type 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Residential 2.4809 2.4809 2.4809 2.4021 2.9021 
Non-Residential 7.9780 7.9780 7.9780 7.7246 7.7246 

COMPARISON TO OTHER SURROUNDING MUNICIPALITIES 

NAME 2013 TAX RATE 
County of Grande Prairie Residential 3.7201 

Non-Residential 12.1630 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Birch Hills Residential 13.0420 

Non-Residential 16.4800 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Smokey River Residential 6.2610 

Non-Residential 14.5500 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Big Lakes Residential 3.5000 

Non-Residential 13.7500 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Woodlands Residential 2.5585 

Non-Residential 8.6654 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Yellowhead Residential 2.4585 

Non-Residential 6.1654 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
City of Grande Prairie Residential 10.1675 

Non-Residential 17.1561 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Town of Valleyview Residential 9.5000 

Non-Residential 17.5503 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Town of Grande Cache Residential 6.9120 

Non-Residential 21.3500 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Town of Fox creek Residential 9.1600 

Non-Residential 14.3900 
-------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------- --------------------------- 
Mackenzie County Residential 7.454 

Non-Residential 11.903 

142



 GREENVIEW BUDGET SUMMARY 2014 Budget 

143



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Grader Blade and Tool Tender 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  WB 

DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning/Operations  GM:  GG  PRESENTER:  WB 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council approve the lowest tender received from Union Tractor Ltd. for the supply of grader 
blades and plow blades for the total amount of $120,246.90 with the money to come from the 2014 Operations 
Road Maintenance Budget. 
 
MOTION: That Council approve the lowest tender received from Union Tractor for the supply of carbide tools 
for the total amount of $67,500.00 with the money to come from the 2014 Operations Road Maintenance 
Budget. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Tenders for the annual supply of grader blades and carbide tools were advertised through the Alberta Purchasing 
Connection process in February and were opened on March 13th 2014. Two tenders were received for the grader 
blades and five for the supply of the carbide tools. The Operations Department staff are familiar with the quality 
of the product supplied by the recommended company and have no concerns with their products. 
 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
It is beneficial to use a product that has proven superior quality. 
 
Council could decide to retender for the products. 
 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
The funding to come from $187,746.90 will be paid out of the 2014 Operations Road Maintenance Budget. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Tender results for Grader Blade 
 Tender results for Tool Tender 

144



145



146



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Grader Districts Tenders 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  WB 

DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning/Operations  GM:  GG  PRESENTER:  WB 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That  Council  approve  the  following  contractors  for  grader  services  for  the  next  three  years 
commencing May 1st, 2014 with an option  to  renew  for  two additional  years upon mutual  consent, with 
funding to come from the Road Maintenance portion of the Operations Department Budget; 

 Puskwaskau area: 1638113 AB at $110.00 per hour 

 Sunset House area: T Morin Construction at $130.00 per hour 

 Sturgeon Heights and Clarkson Valley areas: J. Moody Grader Services at $124.43 per hour 

 DeBolt and Goodwin areas: 1638113 AB at $110.00 per hour 

 Forestry Trunk Road: J Moody Grader Services at $149.43 per hour 

 Grande Cache area: McNeil Construction at $152.00 per hour 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The current contracts  for grader services will expire on April 30th 2014. Tenders  for grader services  for  road 
maintenance were advertised and posted on the Alberta Purchasing Connection Site in February and closed on 
March 13th 2014. 
 
There were a  total of eight contractors  that submitted bids  (see attached)  for  the different areas with some 
bidding  for more  than one area. Of  those all but one met  the equipment  requirements,  that being  the bid 
submitted by T Morin Construction, however we have written confirmation that the required equipment is on 
order and will be available in the near future.  
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Staff have no concerns with accepting the lowest tenders as recommended in the motion.  
 
Alternatively Council could decide to re‐advertise the contracts or decide to provide the required maintenance 
service with equipment from the equipment bid registry list that is currently being compiled for 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 

147



 

2     Request for Decision 

   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:  
  
The Road Maintenance budget recently approved identifies $3,500,000.00 from which payment for the grader 
services will be accessed. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 2014 Grader Districts Tender Results Per Area 

148



2014 Grader Districts Tender Results Per Area 

  2014  2011 

Area  Company  Rate/hr    Rate/hr 

Puskwaskau  1638113 Ab  
 $    
110.00     $98.00  

  J. Moody Grader Service 
 $    
124.43      

 T Morin Contracting Ltd. 
 $    
140.00      

 LaPrairie Works Inc. 
 $    
167.00      

     

Sunset House  T Morin Contracting Ltd. 
 $    
130.00     $98.00  

  Vinette Ventures 
 $    
145.00      

 Moody Grader Service 
 $    
149.43      

 LaPrairie Works Inc 
 $    
167.00      

     

Sturgeon Heights  Moody Grader Services 
 $    
124.43     $114.43  

and Clarkson Valley  T Morin Contracting  
 $    
130.00      

 LaPrairie Works 
 $    
167.00      

 T. Loewen Construction Ltd 
 $    
180.00      

     
Debolt and 
Goodwin  1638113 B. 

 $    
110.00     $120.00  

  Moody Grader Services 
 $    
119.73      

 T Morin Contracting 
 $    
140.00      

 LaPrairie Works 
 $    
167.00      

     

Forestry Trunk Road  J. Moody Grader Services 
 $    
149.43     $134.43  

  LaPrairie Works 
 $    
235.00      

     

Grande Cache Area  McNeil Construction 
 $    
152.00     $142.00  

 

149



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  TWP 710  Discussions 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  CAO:  MH  MANAGER:  KS 

DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning  GM:  GG  PRESENTER:  GG 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  File Number,Legal or N/A.      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council direct administration to work with administration from the M.D. of Big Lakes to develop 
options regarding concerns related to TWP 710. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
TWP 710 within the M.D. of Big Lakes services a number of Greenview residents. Local concerns regarding the 
condition of this road prompted Council to direct administration to arrange a meeting with the M.D. of Big Lakes 
to discuss the possible paving of this road. Greenview Council met with the M.D. of Big Lakes on the possibility 
of road upgrades to TWP 710 at the recent AAMD&C Spring Convention. 
 
Greenview had a preliminary report completed by AMEC Consultants that  included a re‐grade and pavement 
option. The re‐grade and pavement option has been deemed as unfeasible on a cost share basis based on the 
amount of work and cost needed to bring this project into compliance for road paving. The estimate provided 
indicated that this project would be in excess of $11 Million. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Benefit: 
Joint discussions to resolve a public concern. 
 
Disadvantages: 
None. 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
None. 

150



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Road Paving Tender Results 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  KS 

DEPARTMENT:  Infrastructure & Planning  GM:  GG  PRESENTER:  GG 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council award Little Smoky Road Phase IV road paving program to Ledcor Alberta Limited for 
an upset limit of $7,402,525.00 to be funded through the 2014 Capital Budget. 
 
MOTION: That Council allow a 10% contingency of 697,094.39 to come from the Infrastructure Capital Reserve. 
 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL: 
 
Four sealed tenders were received by closing date of March 13, 2014.  

Contractor  Amount of Bid 
Ledcor Alberta Ltd.  $7,091,193.98 

Carmacks Enterprises Ltd.  $7,131,111.00 
Wapiti Gravel Suppliers Ltd.  $7,603,463.37 
Knelsen Sand & Gravel Ltd.  $7,801,904.75 

 
The lowest tender was submitted by Ledcor Alberta with a bid of $7,091,193.98 which includes 65 days for site 
occupancy of $120,250.00. The tendered amount minus the site occupancy is $6,970,943.98. 
 
Construction Costs: 
Construction   $6,970,943.98 
Contingency   $697,094.39 
Potential Bonus                                                                                                                                                        $27,700.00  
Potential Site Occupancy (4 days @ $ 1,850.00 per day)   $7,400.00 
Engineering   $396,481.02 
TOTAL   $8,099,619.39  
 
The  Engineering  Consultant’s  estimate  for  construction  of  this  project  prior  to  the  advertised  tender  was 
$6,643,057.67. 
 
 
 
 

151



 

2     Request for Decision 

   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:  
 
The benefits of paving the remaining ten kilometers of gravel surface on Little Smoky road phase IV will complete 
the entire project as Council has requested. 
 
Council could choose not to award the tender and retender the project. 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Tender amount to be funded by the 2014 Capital Budget. 
 
Contingency to be funded by the Infrastructure Capital Reserve. 
 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
Letter from AMEC 

152



153



154



155



156



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Design and Procurement of Two Fire Halls 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  JF 

DEPARTMENT:  Community Services/Protective Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  JF 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council approves the proposal from Field, Field and Field Architecture Engineering Ltd of Grande 
Prairie, Alberta, for the design and procurement of the Grovedale and DeBolt Fire Halls, with costs based on 6% of 
the design construction costs and funds coming from the 2014 Capital Budget. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
A Request  for Proposal was placed on  the Alberta Purchasing Connection on  January 14, 2014  for the Design and 
Procurement of Two Fire Halls. The criteria for selection was based on corporate profile, fire hall design experience, 
experience working with municipalities and ability to maximize value for Greenview. Seven proposals were received 
and upon review, Field, Field and Field Architecture were determined to be able to provide the best services for the 
proposed work.   With  a  6%  fee  of  construction  value  based  on  a  2.75 million  dollar  project  the  cost would  be 
approximately $330,000.00 which is substantially less than other competitors. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Field, Field & Field is a firm based out of Grande Prairie with over 40 years of professional service in the Peace River 
Region so this makes them familiar with the local site conditions, codes and  local construction industry. They have 
proven that they have the experience working with municipalities on these types of projects in the area. They have 
also worked with Greenview in the past.  
  
Option  available  is  to  not  approve  Field,  Field &  Field Architects &  Engineering  Ltd.  and  repost  the Design  and 
Procurement of Two Fire Halls with another Request for Proposal on the Alberta Purchasing Connection site. 
 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Costs will be based on 6% of the designed construction costs with funding to come from the 2014 Capital Budget. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 

 Greenview Project Forms 
 Consultancy Services Results 

157



158



159



160



161



 

 
Unofficial Results – for information only – does not constitute a tender award. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Note:    prices do not include G.S.T. 
WE, the undersigned, having been present at the tender opening and having examined the tender documents, do hereby certify that the information as recorded above is correct. 
 
 
Municipal District Representative: JEFF FRANCIS, Manager, Protective Services    
 
 
WITNESS: Dennis Mueller 

Consultant City  TOTAL BID COMMENTS 
 

Field, Field & Field 
 

 
Grande Prairie 

 
6% of construction 
value 

Based on each fire hall construction value as $2,750,000 for each fire hall 
total would be 
$330,000 plus GST 

 
Stantec 

 

 
            Red Deer 

 8.4% construction value 
for first hall, 7.1% for 
second fire hall 

Based on $2,750,000 construction value for each fire hall total would be  
$448,065 plus GST 

 
BRZ Architecture 

 

 
Calgary 

 
7.5% 1st fire hall 
5.6% 2nd fire hall 

Based on $2,750,000 construction value for each fire hall total would be 
$360,250 plus GST, plus 5% disbursements 

 
WSP (Genivar) 

 

 
Edmonton 

 
 

Not recommended as they did not understand scope of work and did not 
allow enough design time. Their fee proposal was based on using another 
design with minor changes. 

 
Hartwig Architecture 

 

 
Edmonton 

 9% of construction 
value, plus 
disbursements 

Based on $2,750,000 construction value for each fire hall total would be  
$540,000 

 
Riddell Kurczaba 

Architecture 
 

 
Calgary 

 
8% first fire hall 
4.5% second fire hall 
Plus disbursements 

 Based on each fire hall construction value as $2,750,000 for each fire hall 
total would be$373,750 plus GST                                                                
All of this firms references are from the United States 

          S2 Architecture 

 
Edmonton 

 

$ 754,320 No percentage quoted 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF GREENVIEW NO. 16 
RFP- Consultancy Services for the Design and Procurement for Two Fire Halls 

Closing Wednesday, January 29, 2014 at 2:00 p.m. 

162



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Grovedale Community Hall Cell Phone Booster 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  JF 

DEPARTMENT:  Community Services/Protective Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  JF 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council approves the installation of a cell phone booster at the Grovedale Community Hall with a 
cost not to exceed $4000.00 funded by the 2014 Disaster Services Budget. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:  
 
The following motion was authorized by Council at the January 31, 2014 Council Meeting:  

That Council request Administration to investigate Grovedale Hall acquiring cell service for Emergency Services. 
 

The Grovedale Community Hall is identified in Greenview’s Emergency Plan as a Reception Centre.  Presently the cell 
phone service is not adequate for the Emergency Service’s needs.   
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
In the event that the Grovedale Community Hall reception centre was utilized, the cell phone booster would provide 
more effective communication. 
 
Continue with the present form of communication, however, the services are not reliable.   
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
The funds to come from the 2014 Disaster Services Budget. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Vector Communication Quote 

163



164



165



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Valleyview Visitor Information Centre 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Community Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council approve a grant amount of $30,000.00 to the Town of Valleyview to assist in operating 
the Visitor Information Centre for 2014, with funding to come from the 2014 Community Service Grant.   
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The  Valleyview  Chamber  of  Commerce  has  passed  a  resolution  and  closed  the  Visitor  Information  Centre 
effective February 28, 2014. Prior  to  the resolution, Greenview provided  the Chamber of Commerce with an 
operating grant  in the amount of $30,000.00 for the Visitor  Information Centre.   As a result of the resolution 
made by the Valleyview Chamber of Commerce to close the Visitor Information Centre, the $30,000.00 grant was 
returned to Greenview.   
 
The Town of Valleyview passed a resolution to take over the operation of the Visitor Information Centre.  The 
Town’s intention is to re‐establish the facility as a Tourism Information Centre without the inclusion of retail sales 
and operate it during the tourism season, May to September.   
 
The Town of Valleyview is requesting the $30,000.00 that was provided to the Valleyview Chamber of Commerce 
be  resubmitted  in  the  Town’s  name  to  assist  with  the  2014  operation  cost  of  the  re‐established  Visitor 
Information Centre. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
The benefit of providing the $30,000.00 operating grant to the Town of Valleyview is that the Visitor Information 
Centre  will  be  re‐opened  for  the  many  tourists  passing  through  this  community  seeking  guidance  on  the 
attractions of Greenview and other neighboring communities.   
 
Council has the option to deny the operating grant or adjust the grant funding amount requested. 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
The funding for the $30,000.00 operating grant will come from the 2014 Community Service Grant. 
 
 

166



 

2     Request for Decision 

   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Letter from the Town of Valleyview 

167



168



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Stock Dog Trial for the 2014 Western Canadian Finals – Letter of Support  
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Community Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council authorize a Letter of Support for the 2014 Western Canadian Final Stock Dog Trial to be 
held in Valleyview. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
A letter dated March 13, 2014 was received from Mr. Hadley‐Roberts, host of the Stock Dog Trial for the 2014 
Western Canadian Finals.  The Stock Dog Trial will be held in Valleyview, Alberta from October 3rd to October 5th.  
The four Western Stock Dog Associations for Manitoba, Saskatchewan, Alberta and BC take turns hosting this 
event.  The four western associations are confident with Mr. Hadley‐Roberts ability and experience to carry out 
the planning and management of the Western Canadian Finals.   
 
Mr. Hadley‐Roberts is seeking financial support from Alberta Sport, Recreation Parks and Wildlife Foundation‐
Event Support Program.  Mr. Hadley‐Roberts is requesting a letter of support from Greenview sanctioning the 
event. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Competitors for this event will be from the four western provinces, Manitoba, Saskatchewan, Alberta and British 
Columbia.  The addition of these tourists to Greenview will enhance the economy during the events and perhaps 
promote future visits. 
 
Council has the option to deny providing a letter of support, however, a tourism opportunity would be bypassed 
for Greenview.    
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Letter – Requesting Letter of Support for the Stock Dog Trial for the 2014 Western Canadian Finals 

169



170



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Grande Prairie Live Theatre – Reel Shorts Film Festival  
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Community Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council approve a grant amount of $1,000 to the Grande Prairie Live Theatre for the Reel Shorts 
Film Festival, with funding to come from the 2014 Community Service Miscellaneous Grants. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
A  funding  request  was  received  from  the  Grande  Prairie  Live  Theatre  for  the  Reel  Shorts  Film  Festival,  a 
production of the Grande Prairie Live Theatre.  A committee of volunteers hosts the festival with a mission to 
celebrate  the  short  films and  filmmakers who make  them, by  screening gems of  storytelling brilliance  from 
around the world, across Canada, and here in the Peace Region.  Films for the school program are composed of 
5 packages  for Grade 1 – 3, Grade 4 – 6,  Junior High, High School English/Languages and High School Social 
Studies.  The 2013 Festival Screenings were viewed by 1017 students and their teachers from 14 schools.  Ninety‐
one students, attended the Reel Shorts Film Festival Screenings from two Greenview schools, 63 students from 
the Penson School, Grovedale and 28 students from the Ridgevalley School, Crooked Creek.   
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
The benefit of the Reel Shorts Film Festival is that it will enhance the Greenview students’ minds with storytelling 
brilliance from around the world. 
 
Council has the option to deny the request for funding from the Grande Prairie Live Theatre or adjust the grant 
funding provided.   
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
The funding for the Reel Shorts Film Festival will come from the 2014 Community Service Miscellaneous Grants. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Grande Prairie Live Theatre Funding Request 

171



 
 

Charitable Registration #893138669RR0001 
10130 – 98 Ave, Grande Prairie, AB, T8V 0P6 

Ph (780) 538-1616; Fax (780) 532-0464 
Terry Scerbak 

Director/Programmer 
terry@reelshorts.ca 

(780) 814.7410 

www.reelshorts.ca 

 
MD of Greenview 

Contribution Request of $1,000 
 
The Reel Shorts Film Festival is a production of Grande Prairie Live Theatre, a registered non-profit, charitable 
organization. A committee of volunteers puts on the festival with a mission to celebrate short films and the 
filmmakers who make them by screening gems of storytelling brilliance from around the world, across Canada, 
and here in the Peace Region. We entertain audiences, and inspire, develop, and showcase Peace Region 
filmmakers, thus helping to grow a filmmaking community and provide opportunities for youth. 
 
Dave Watson, a County of Grande Prairie resident and teacher at Swanavon School, has been on the festival 
team since it was first organized in 2007. Adrian Tanasichuk, a City of Grande Prairie resident and teacher at 
Peace Wapiti Academy, has been on the festival team for the last three years. Along with Kelly Thomas and 
John Rimmer, City residents and teachers at Montrose School, they choose the films for the school program 
which is composed of 5 packages (Grade 1-3, Grade 4-6, junior high, high school English/Languages, and high 
school Social Studies) that are so valued by teachers that 1,017 students and their teachers from 14 schools 
attended screenings at the 2013 festival. Nine percent of those students (91) were from two schools in the MD 
of Greenview: 

• Grande Prairie 
o Bridge Network 
o Grande Prairie Composite High 
o Harry Balfour 
o IV Macklin 
o Montrose Junior High 
o PWA 
o Swanavon 

• Region 
o Beaverlodge High 
o Clairmont Community School 
o Eaglesham School 
o Hines Creek Composite 
o Penson School, Grovedale = 63 
o Ridgevalley, Crooked Creek = 28 
o St. Mary’s School, Sexsmith 

 
We expect many of the same schools to attend again this year. 
 
Including public attendance of 1,736 with the school groups, total attendance in 2013 was 2,753. More than a 
quarter of public attendees had postal codes outside of Grande Prairie. Of the 23% living within 250 km, the 
postal codes given by questionnaire respondents included Grovedale, Crooked Creek, Debolt, Valleyview, and 
Grande Cache. 
 

172



2 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 173



3 

 
The only age group where males outnumber females is aged 18-29 – this is the group that is most interested in 
filmmaking. If they are aspiring or emerging filmmakers or actors, they are at the fest to: (1) see the films they 
or their friends helped to make, (2) critique and be inspired by all the films at the fest, (3) take advantage of 
workshops and Q&As to learn how to make their own films and/or to improve their skills, and (4) meet and talk 
to visiting filmmakers. If they’re not part of the former group, this age group is also the one most interested in 
the midnight Psycho Shorts program of short horror films. At 26%, this age group represents the largest 
demographic of public attendees. When combined with the school groups (and calculating this age group as 
26% of the remaining 63% which are public attendees), 61% of total attendees are 29 years of age or younger. 
 
Providing opportunities for youth is a major priority of the festival. Two new regional initiatives are being 
offered in 2014: 
 
The Youth Screenwriter Mentorship Project and Screenplay Competition will replace the Youth Film 
Mentorship Project, a very successful 2013 initiative that resulted in HB, a short film that screened at the 
Calgary International Film Festival (winning Best Overall Youth Short Film), the Edmonton International Film 
Festival, Austin Film Festival (winning the Young Filmmakers Competition), Children’s Film Festival Seattle, 
and New York International Children’s Film Festival. Rather than offering mentorship to only one youth team 
of Screenwriter, Producer, Director, Cinematographer, and Editor through the development and production of 
one script as we did in 2013, the Youth Screenwriter Mentorship Project will provide mentorship to as many as 
15 aspiring Peace Region screenwriters aged 16-24 as they polish their short screenplays. The best script will 
receive cash and a production package worth $2,500. This opportunity is provided at no cost to Peace Region 
youth. 

 
The Frantic 48 Film Challenge is a new initiative being offered jointly with PRIMAA (Peace Region 
Independent Media Arts Association), a filmmakers’ cooperative. Over the course of the adrenaline-filled 
weekend of May 2-4, teams throughout the Peace Region will write, shoot and edit a short film based on three 
elements that will be provided: prop, line of dialogue, and genre. Films that meet these requirements will screen 
as part of the Reel Shorts Film Festival on May 10, 2014. Because several of the region’s experienced 
filmmakers will each lead a team competing in the Frantic 48, there are many opportunities for inexperienced 
and emerging filmmakers and actors to become involved on one of these teams and to learn by doing. But 
anyone can form a team and can shoot their film anywhere in the Peace Region May 2-4. It is a fun and intense 
collaboration among team members, and a huge accomplishment to actually finish a short film in 48 hours. As 
the filmmaking community continues to grow and develop in the Peace Region, employment and self-
employment opportunities are growing as well, and just waiting to be filled by talented filmmakers who’ve had 
a chance to develop their skills. Two prizes of $500 will be awarded: the best film as determined by a judge and 
the best film as determined by audience votes. 
 
Conclusion 
 
As a production of Grande Prairie Live Theatre, the Reel Shorts Film Festival is run by volunteers for the 
benefit of Peace Region residents.  It could not be done without the support of funders and sponsors. There are 
still several sources of funding that are not yet confirmed, so we sincerely hope that the MD of Greenview will 
grant our request for support in the amount of $1,000. 
 

We would recognize the support of the MD of Greenview by including your logo in our 60-second intro reel 
which runs before every screening. We would also name the MD of Greenview as a supporter in our 56-page 
souvenir print program. We would be honoured to invite Council members to our Sat night package as well.

174



Reel Shorts Film Festival Budget May 7-11, 2014 Pkgs # Per Unit Subtotal Cash GIK Subtotal Subtotal Total

REVENUE

Ticket Sales
Festival passes 40 $60.00 $2,400.00
Film packages - evening & weekend

Adults 12 40 $12.00 $5,760.00
Students 12 15 $6.00 $1,080.00
Pizza Party & Psycho Shorts 1 80 $20.00 $1,600.00

School packages - weekday daytime 5 120 $5.00 $3,000.00 $13,840.00

Class visits 4 $75.00 $300.00 $300.00
Frantic 48 & Youth Screenplay Awards

Adults 25 $12.00 $300.00
Students 5 $6.00 $30.00 $330.00 $14,470.00

Other sales
Twizzlers, ice cream and water $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $15,070.00

Grants
Alberta Human Services $5,700.00
Travel Alberta $2,282.27
GP Regional Tourism / DMF $250.00
City of Grande Prairie festival grant $10,000.00
Downtown Association $500.00
MD of Greenview $1,000.00
County of Grande Prairie $2,800.00 $22,532.27 $22,532.27

Donations $500.00 $500.00 $500.00 $23,032.27

Cash Sponsorships
Encana $3,000.00
Canadian Tire $1,500.00
Atco Electric $1,500.00
ATB $1,500.00
Edmonton International Film Festival $1,000.00
Capstan Hauling $2,500.00
Crown & Anchor $500.00 $11,500.00 $11,500.00

GIK Sponsorships
Menzies $1,255.62
Pizza Hut - Fri midnight pizza $1,000.00
Jan Cinema $900.00
Stanford Hotel $1,602.00
Mr. Mike's $250.00

175



Reel Shorts Film Festival Budget May 7-11, 2014 Pkgs # Per Unit Subtotal Cash GIK Subtotal Subtotal Total
nine10 $3,000.00
Celestin Beausoleil - music $150.00
Mark Picard - intro reel $1,000.00
DHT $225.00
CKUA $3,030.00
KIX, Peace River $600.00
Moose, FSJ $500.00
Big Country $4,000.00
Rock 97 $6,680.00
Free FM $2,000.00
Q99 $6,980.00 $33,172.62 $44,672.62 $82,774.89

Total Revenue $49,602.27 $33,172.62 $82,774.89

EXPENSES

Programming Expenses
Seattle International ShortFest $238.10 $238.10
Palm Springs International ShortFest $1,441.01 $1,441.01
Edmonton & Calgary Film Festivals $912.75 $912.75
Other programming expenses $469.25 $469.25 $3,061.11

Films
Festival screening fees $11,956.87 $11,956.87
Couriering and shipping films $200.00 $200.00 $12,156.87

Filmmakers
Youth Screenwriter Mentorship Project & Screenplay Competition

Scott Belyea - honorarium for mentoring screenwriters $4,200.00
Gordie Haakstad - honorarium for judging and directing table read $900.00 $5,100.00 $5,100.00
Return airfare from Vancouver for Scott Belyea $600.00 $600.00 $600.00
Stanford - 6 nights accommodation for Scott 6 $89.00 $534.00 $534.00 $534.00

Attending filmmakers
Travel bursaries 2 $500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Stanford - 12 nights accommodation for fest guests 12 $89.00 $1,068.00 $1,068.00 $1,068.00
Honorariums for classroom visits 4 $125.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
Honorariums for Q&As 10 $100.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

Mr. Mike's - Filmmakers welcome dinner $250.00 $250.00 $500.00 $10,302.00

Prizes & Awards
Youth Screenwriter Mentorship Program

Best Screenplay $500.00
Production financing for filmmaker of winning screenplay $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Frantic 48 Film Challenge 2 $250.00 $500.00 $500.00 $500.00
Awards

Awards 4 $200.00 $800.00
Sportswear Plus / Alberta Trophy - engraving awards 4 $25.00 $100.00 $900.00 $900.00 $3,900.00

176



Reel Shorts Film Festival Budget May 7-11, 2014 Pkgs # Per Unit Subtotal Cash GIK Subtotal Subtotal Total

Venues & Food
Second Street Theatre - foregone rental $4,000.00 $4,000.00
Decorating $100.00 $100.00
Muskoseepi Park Pavilion May 10-11 $100.00 $100.00 $4,200.00
Jan Cinema

Rental for school screenings 5 $150.00 $750.00 $750.00 $750.00 $1,500.00
Rental for Psycho Shorts 1 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $150.00 $300.00
Beverages - pop 180 $2.50 $450.00 $450.00 $450.00 $2,250.00

Long & McQuade - microphones $100.00 $100.00
GLC licence for after-parties $25.00 $25.00
Betty Banman - extra cleaning charges $300.00 $300.00
After-party music $150.00 $150.00
Twizzlers (and chocolates for questionnaires)

Sneak Preview $60.16
Festival $320.00 $380.16 $380.16

Psycho Shorts pizza $1,000.00 $1,000.00
After-parties food

Monica's - opening night $400.00
Monica's - Sat night $400.00 $800.00 $800.00 $2,755.16

Advertising
nine10 - print design & website $600.00 $3,000.00 $3,600.00
DHT - 2 DHT website home page ads May 7 and 8 2 $112.50 $225.00 $225.00 $225.00 $450.00
Teachers Convention $190.00 $190.00
Supplies for Teachers Convention - Costco & Fabricland $60.00 $60.00
Posters - 120 Sneak Preview 11x17 posters $93.23 $31.08 $124.31
Menzies - 600 posters (180 Youth Screenplay, 180 Frantic 48, 240 fest) $441.12 $147.04 $588.16
Schedule booklets - 2000 5.5x8.5 $532.50 $177.50 $710.00
Souvenir programs 900 x 64 pgs $2,700.00 $900.00 $3,600.00
Community Connections 1/4 page ad $77.00 $77.00
Postcard Portables - 5 x $325 ($300 cost + $25 city fee) 5 $325.00 $1,625.00 $1,625.00 $1,625.00
Sound Proof Audio - voicing radio ad $100.00 $100.00
Facebook - promote posts $600.00 $600.00
CKUA $600.00 $3,030.00 $3,630.00
KIX, Peace River $600.00 $600.00 $1,200.00
Moose, Fort St. John $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00
Big Country $800.00 $4,000.00 $4,800.00
Rock 97 $1,000.00 $6,680.00 $7,680.00
Free FM $800.00 $2,000.00 $2,800.00
Q99 $800.00 $6,980.00 $7,780.00 $40,614.47

Professional Development
International Film Festival Summit, Austin, TX Dec 8-10, 2013 $1,492.55 $1,492.55 $1,492.55

177



Reel Shorts Film Festival Budget May 7-11, 2014 Pkgs # Per Unit Subtotal Cash GIK Subtotal Subtotal Total

Other Expenses
Intro reel $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Mybadges.com - 200 badges and 250 lanyards $275.95 $275.95
Monty Simo - reimburse Dropbox for film file transfers $60.00 $60.00
Picture Perfect - GPLT's Reel Shorts poster drymounted $10.00 $10.00
Domain Name Registration - reimburse $129.00 $129.00
Volunteer appreciation party $200.00 $200.00
AMAAS membership $100.00 $100.00
Supplies $167.78 $167.78
Postage $100.00 $100.00 $2,042.73 $82,774.89

Net Revenue $49,602.27 $33,172.62 $82,774.89 $0.00

178



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Knowledge Tree Early Learning & Childcare Centre 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Community Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council approve a grant in the amount of $50,000.00 to the Knowledge Tree Early Learning and 
Child Care Centre Society for the renovation, set‐up and supplies needed to meet Government Regulations at 
the Perron Building pending  the approved building  inspection, permit and  licensing  requirements, and an 
agreement is executed by the Chief Administrative Officer, with funding to come from the 2014 Community 
Service Miscellaneous Grants. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Knowledge Tree Early Learning and Child Care Centre submitted a detailed report that provided the history 
of child care in Valleyview, partnerships, past involvement, credentials, needs assessment, subsidies, job creation 
and proposed sites.    
 
Two options were provided the option that provides adequate space and a rapid solution to the immediate need 
for childcare is the Perron Building located in Valleyview, AB.   
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Council has the option to deny the request for funding, however, daycare provision service is inadequate to meet 
the current needs of the Valleyview area.   
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Funding for this grant to come from the 2014 Community Service Miscellaneous Grants.  
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Report ‐  Knowledge Tree Early Learning and Child Care Centre Operating under the Valleyview and 
Area Early Learning and Child Care Centre Society 

 PowerPoint Printout ‐ Knowledge Tree Early Learning and Child Care Centre Operating under the 
Valleyview and Area Early Learning and Child Care Centre Society 

179



 

 

   
Knowledge Tree Early Learning and Child Care Centre 
Operating under the Valleyview and Area Early Learning and Child Care Centre Society  

‘  

Creating Child Care Space 
Committee of the Society 

 

180



 

1 
 

 MD of Greenview                  March 2014 

 

Attention: Members of Council  

RE: Child Care within the Community of Valleyview and Surrounding MD of Greenview 

 

History of Child Care since 2006 

In 2006 there was a needs assessment done which showed that Child Care is in the top 3 needs for our 
area. At that time the MD of Greenview had Trina Carroll the FCSS Manager and the Town of Valleyview 
had Pam Hodgson the Early Intervention Worker look into Child Care and begin the process of creating 
Child Care spaces. A steering committee was created and they opened a Society called “Valleyview and 

Area Early Learning and Child Care Centre Society”. The society then completed the licensing process 
with the centre name as “Knowledge Tree Early Learning and Child Care Centre”. At that time a number 
of options were looked at for space but they were not affordable for a non‐profit society. Coincidentally 
St. Stephen’s School along with Holy Family School Division were looking at opening a preschool type 
environment and asked for a partnership. They offered Knowledge Tree space within the school which 
has been operating since (2008?). This partnership has been a success but only partly meets the needs 
of the community.  

 

Child Care before 2006 

There was a Child Care Centre housed within St. Stephens’ previous school. It was incorporated in June 
of 1987, housed 35 plus children and ran for 28 years. When the old school was demolished, the non‐
profit centre did not have the funds available to be included in the new school being built. All moneys 
and assets of the old day care were given to the new society. 

 

Partnerships 

A. St. Stephen’s School 

Our main partner has been St. Stephen’s School. We have operated as a Child Care and a Preschool 
within the one classroom they have provided. We began with a Child Care type facility and were open 
from 7am to 6pm. There were however difficulties in trying to provide this type of care in the space 
provided because we were limited to a small space, did not have a direct phone line to use after school 
hours and during the summer, no air conditioning with the hot summer months, and the school doors 
needed to be kept locked after school hours which made it difficult for parents to get in the building. 

181



 

2 
 

On the positive the School has been very willing to partner with Knowledge Tree to make things work. 
They have offered their gym and library for our children as well as the staffroom and photocopier. They 
have invited us to join in some of their school activities including the Christmas concert. All in all it has 
been a wonderful experience.  

However because of some of the previous difficulties mentioned we changed the program from a Child 
Care Centre to more of a Preschool type centre. It operates from 8:30am to 3:00pm and cares for 3 year 
olds on Monday and Wednesday and 4 year olds on Tuesday and Thursday. 

B. Supports to Early Learning Programs – also known as The Network 

The Network is a regional support system, contracted by the government through Stepping Stones 
Society in Grande Prairie. Its mandate is to provide services to licensed Child Care programs, community 
agencies and affiliated organizations. They provide on‐site visits, provider and parent workshops, 
training and lending resources to meet the growing demands for high quality Child Care. The Network is 
also available to help groups wanting to create Child Care spaces within their communities. 
 
The Early Learning Consultants for the High Prairie and Area Chapter cover from High Prairie, Falher, 
Valleyview, and Ridgevalley to Fox Creek. We have been fortunate enough to have had the consultants 
based out of Valleyview as they are residents of the town of Valleyview and the MD of Greenview. Both 
of the consultants have also been a part of the Valleyview and Area Early Learning and Childcare Centre 
Society from 2006 and have seen the struggles and triumphs of the committee.  
 
Bernie Napier was the first Early Learning Consultant for our area. She has lived in the MD of Green View 
since 1971 and is now a resident of the Town of Valleyview. Bernie has her Early Childhood Education 
Diploma and has been very active in the Child Care community and ran the previous Valleyview 
Children’s Daycare for 17 years. Bernie has been very active in supporting the steering committee and 
has spent many hours looking for suitable space for Child Care. She will be retiring from her consulting 
position in the near future and will then focus volunteering for Knowledge Tree. 
 
Christin Trofimenkoff has been an Early Learning Consultant for the past year and was also the Early 
Intervention Worker at Alberta Health for three years in the Valleyview area. She has her Early 
Childhood Education and has many years of experience in the Early Learning and Childcare field. She 
moved to the MD in 2006 and immediately joined the steering committee for Knowledge Tree. She has 
helped create the by‐laws and policies of Knowledge Tree Early Learning and Care Centre and has been 
involved over the past 8 years in helping make this dream become a reality. 
 
The consultants provide a much needed service to help advise us and keep us on the right track.  
 
 

 

 

 

182



 

3 
 

The Steering Committee 

 
The steering committee has included many involved parents and community members who have spent 
countless hours trying to make this a reality. Some have come and gone as their children are now in 
school and some are still very active and continue working hard at opening more licensed Child Care 
spots.    
 
 

Past Proposed Sites for Child Care  

Since 2006 many locations have been looked at for Child Care Space. These include: 
Current FCSS building  
Previous FCSS building  
Previous Pentecostal Church  
Previous Co‐operators building 
Previous Co‐op Building   
Government issued modular that was to be placed on School property 
OAP School 
Hillside School  
Constructing from new or modular from new 
Previous Forestry Building  
Valley Video Store  
Valleyview & Area Metis Association Building (formally the drycleaners) 
  
 A lot of time and effort has been put into acquiring space for Child Care over the last 8 years. In reality 
these locations did not work for some of the following reasons; too costly to purchase, too many 
renovations, too much up keep, black mold or asbestos in the buildings. The grant for the modular was 
denied for Valleyview because it was stated there were too many other empty locations to choose from.  
 

Licenced/Certified Child Care & Preschool with in the area at Present 

Susan’s Daycare       private/profit   (780) 524‐9571    Holds 18 spots 

OAP Preschool         non‐profit  (780) 524‐3144    Holds 24 spots 

Knowledge Tree Preschool     non‐ profit   (780) 524‐3562    Holds 18 spots 

Ridgevalley Playschool       non‐ profit          (780) 957‐3995    Holds 20 spots 

Fox Creek Playschool       non‐profit        (780) 622‐2234    Holds 23 spots 

Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation Day Care   reserve    (780) 524‐5950    Holds 37 spots 

Safe Haven Day Home Agency     private/profit   (780) 536‐2572          No Licensed Day Homes 
                    at this time 

183



 

4 
 

There are private day homes in Valleyview but The Network’s Early Learning Consultants and FCSS are 
not at liberty to share that information because these homes are not licensed or monitored. The 
numbers of children in these private days homes can include 6 children plus the providers own children. 
This means if a provider has 4 children they could have up to 10 children in their home. This is not an 
optimal situation. In licensed day homes the provider can have only a maximum of 6 children including 
their own children. Of these 6 children only 2 children can be under 2 years old and only 3 children 
under 3 years old; the other 3 children must be over the age of 3.  This provides a safer environment 
with greater care and learning.  

 

What does it mean to be licensed and accredited? 

Licensed facilities are monitored by the government through Family and Child Services Authorities. 
There are strict government codes that must be met to qualify for licencing. These include things like 
size of space, number of adults per children, levels of education staff have, and the quality of 
supervision and interactions the staff show. Licensing officers visit the centre unannounced several 
times a year to monitor what is happening.  

If a centre decides to go above and beyond licensing they can choose to go through the accreditation 
process which has even higher standards of care. Knowledge Tree has taken that path and has been 
accredited for 3 years.  

 

What does it mean to be an inclusive Child Care setting? 

Inclusive child care means that all children are included no matter what their abilities are. Knowledge 
Tree is an inclusive centre and at times has included an assistant for the children who require extra care. 
It also requires us to be completely wheelchair accessible so all families can access the care provided.  

  

Difference between Preschool and Child Care  

As per licensing there is no difference between the care provided in a Child Care Centre and a Preschool. 
There should be the same types of learning opportunities in both settings which include stories, music, 
art, outdoor play, and large & small group activities. The planning must meet the physical, social, 
emotional, creative and intellectual learning of each specific child. 

The following are the differences; 
Child Care can be accredited but not Preschool 
Child Care must have a level 3 certified staff & Preschool only a level 2 (There are 3 levels of education) 
Child Care can operate with certified staff only & Preschool can have one staff and one parent volunteer  
Child Care covers from Newborn to Kindergarten & Preschool runs for 3 and 4 year olds 
Child Care can run for a full day & Preschool only 3 ½ hours per day 

184



 

5 
 

 

At this time both preschool programs in Valleyview, OAP and Knowledge Tree; operate under a Child 
Care license so they can provide preschool from 8:30am to 3pm. Both programs do offer the parents the 
option of half days if that is what they prefer.  

However, five day a week Child Care is what the full time working parents of our community are lacking.   

 

Need for Child Care within Valleyview and surrounding MD of Greenview  

At this time there is one licensed profit Child Care Centre that holds 18 spots but is full and usually holds 
a waiting list. The two preschools run full most years and provide a learning opportunity for children 1 to 
2 days a week. These spots are used by parents for a number of reasons; first as a learning opportunity 
for their children, some use it so they are able to work part time, and some use the preschool on 
kindergarten days off so they can work full time.  

At this time Valleyview is lacking; 

Full time care for families needing Child Care five days a week for multiple aged children in one location 
High quality monitored Child Care for children from 12months to 2 years  
After School Care 
 
Many of the small children in our community are not receiving consistent care because families have to 
access 2 or more places for their children during the day. Consist care is very important at a young age 
for bonding purposes.  
 
Low to moderate income and single parent families need the subsidies provided by the government in 
licensed Child Care which are not available in private child care.  

 

What are subsidises and how are they accessed? 

The Ministry of Human Services provides financial assistance to eligible lower‐income families using 
Licenced Child Care centres, Licenced pre‐schools, Licensed out of school care centres and other 
approved Early Childhood Development programs. 

Maximum subsidy rates vary by program type, the age of child and number of children in the family 
attending child care. There are criteria for eligibility outlined on line at, 
http:humanservices.alberta.ca/financial‐support or by calling 1‐877‐644‐9992. Current child care subsidy 
rates for eligible families vary from $628.00/month for infants to $310.00/month for out of school care. 

Our staff members are trained to give assistant to any parent wishing to apply for this service, and the 
families can have free access to our internet and our computer to apply. 

185



 

6 
 

The following are comments from parents and families within the MD and Town. 

“I am looking for a subsidy approved child care center..” 

“I moved to the MD almost eight years ago and had to give up my position with Alberta Health because 

there was no quality licensed Child Care I could take my children too.”  

“ I am a single mother of 3 who seriously needs to get a job to provide for my family, the only problem is 

child care for my youngest daughter who is 14 months...my other two children are in school...I’m hoping 

to find an 8:30‐4:30 job...please msg me if interested with your rates.” 

“We are in the early stages of looking for childcare for our daughter beginning in this coming May. She 

will be 11 months old and we are hoping to find someone who is flexible and a good fit as a caregiver for 

our daughter. Please PM me if you are interested. Thanks” 

“Yes, I would like to help (with the steering committee)! Please message me or share information! Thank 

you so much for organizing that!” 

“This is awesome Jodi, I do not need childcare and do not work, but I do know that this is very needed 

here in our town.”  

“I have been sitting on the Knowledge Tree committee since 2006 trying to help get Quality Care in this 

community, but we are always  blocked by the need for adequate space, it just too expensive for a non‐

profit without support.” 

“Many of the town’s professional workers find it difficult to work in Valleyview because of the lack of 

choice in quality care.” 

“It’s so difficult to pay for childcare in this town because almost everyone is private and can charge 

whatever they want, and there’s no help from subsidies”  

	

Job Creation  

Knowledge Tree Early Learning and Childcare Center will employ 4 full time and 2‐3 part time positions   
creating jobs in our community.  This new centre will also help employers in our community as their 
employees will be able to find suitable care.  

With the Government wage top‐up grant programs in an accredited facility like Knowledge Tree a Child 
Development Supervisor (Level 3) will make in excess of $22.00 per hour.  The top‐up program is there 
to offer child care workers better wages and the center will benefit by retaining the staff. 

 

 

186



 

7 
 

Proposed Sites for Child Care  

There are two options in the future that this committee can see. These two options include; a site within 
the Multiplex being discussed in Valleyview at this time and the previous Water Treatment Plant/Perron 
building. The latter has been renovated and leased out for the last two years as a store and office 
building and is an immediate option.  

 

A. Option One ‐ Multiplex 

There is a possibility of having a centre within the multiplex which would be a great location with 
possible extra actives that the children could be involved in. This could include having a Fieldhouse for a 
few minutes of gym time a day for excise or possible swimming trips. Depending on what the agreement 
would look like we could pay a flat rent for our space with utilities and maintenance included in that 
rent.  

Draw backs are that we would be relying on the fact this project would go ahead and that child care to 
meet the needs of the community would be included. Also the fact Parents are in need of care 
immediately and are working hard towards that goal. 

Our requirements would be to place approximately 35 children in full time care. We would need three 
rooms for children from 12 months to 5 years, a room for after school care. If drop in care was wanted 
for the parents using the space we could work with the multiplex to try and make that happen. Drop in 
spots could be handled in one of two ways; a separate room that could be group care for the drop in 
children or a few spots in each age group, as we would have to stay within government ratios (number 
of adults per number of child in each age group). The drop in children would have to be classed as part‐ 
time and registered in the program to meet regulations. 

 

B. Option Two – Old Water Treatment Plant/Perron Building 

The previous water treatment plant has become available for lease and we have had a chance to view 
the building. This building has some great potential. On one side we can provide care for 22 Children 
from 12 months to 6 years and there is possibility of providing after school care pending the fire 
inspection. The other side of the building has 6 offices which would provide rental income to help cover 
the cost of the lease. There is a kitchenette where we can store some food but not enough equipment 
to provide hot lunch yet, although there is enough room for expansion to provide hot lunches and 
snacks in the future.  The building looks to be in excellent repair but as per regulations we need a fire, 
building & health inspection.  

 

187



 

8 
 

Lease details have not been written out but if the lessor agrees to provide maintenance of the building it 
should be feasible for a non‐profit society to be sustainable. 

 There are some minor renovations that would need to happen to meet the Government regulations. 
These have been discussed with the lessor and have been approved as possible changes. The 
renovations include one bathroom on the childcare side of the building, plumbing for a washer and 
dryer, a ramp for the outside of the building to make it wheel chair assessable and a fence for the 
outdoor play space.  

Drawbacks to this location are that we may outgrow the 22 spaces that we can provide as per regulated 
floor space requirements. Possible solution would be to remove walls in offices to create another larger 
room; however this has not been discussed with the lessor nor have we looked at it from a detailed 
financial point of view. The second drawback is we cannot have a washroom facility right in the room for 
the three to five year old children, they will have to use the washroom located in the second room for 
the children under 3. In an optimum centre each room would have their own washroom and water 
source for washing hands before & after meals and clean‐up purposes.   

We can see this option opening as soon as June 1st, 2014; following minor renovations and extra 
supplies to meet regulations. See Attachment 2. 

 

Opening Date 

Valleyview & Area Early Learning and Child Care Center Society will run two centres. We will be keeping 
the preschool at St. Stephen’s and it will be called Knowledge Tree Preschool. The second location at the 
old water treatment plant will be called Knowledge Tree Early Learning & Child Care Centre.  

The preschool program ends in May and the society can to move the existing Child Care licence from the 
school to the new building with a minor change in the number of children. To move the licence we 
require is a site visit from Licensing and Accreditation. Along with the previous mentioned inspections. 

That will then give us until August to apply for a second license to cover the Preschool space at St. 
Stephen’s School starting for the fall term in September.  

   

 

 

 

 

 

188



 

9 
 

What Valleyview and Area Early Learning and Child Care Centre Society can provide 

We have a variety of toys, cubbies, tables, chairs, resources that have been in storage for the past 8‐10 
years.  We hope that most are still useable, but being an accredited program, we have to maintain a 
certain level of excellence in our equipment, toys, programming. 

The society has completed a number of different fundraisers in the past which include a Magic Show, 
Canada Day fish pond, and highway clean‐ups. We intend to fund raise again this year by doing the MD 
highway clean‐up under our non‐profit society.  Our parent volunteers are ready to help with the set‐up 
of the new centre to open for our target date of June 1, 2014. 

We would like to let you know that the steering committee has gathered extensive data in the last 8 
years about what our community needs in the area of Child Care and have the skills, resources, 
partnerships and knowledge to support a program that will help to meet the Child Care needs of our 
families within Valleyview and the MD of Greenview.  See Attachment 1 – Projected Budget 

 

Support from the MD of Greenview  

We would like to ask for support from the MD of Greenview to help us provide these services for our 
community and MD residents in the form of monetary help to cover the cost of some renovations and 
start up equipment to meet regulations. Included is a breakdown of the items we would need and the 
renovation costs. See Attachment 2 – Grant Support  

We would like to start as soon as possible and can see the Perron building as the best way to begin 
addressing the needs for Child Care in our community. 

   

189



 

10 
 

Attachment 1 ‐ Budget based on 20 spaces per month 

Income:  Parent fees      20 x 620.00 each space    $12,000.00 

    Government staff top‐up  Benefits and Top‐up    $  1,700.00 

    Office Space Rental    5 office @400.00 each      S 2.000.00 

    Fund Raisers extra   

               Total Income               $15,700.00 

Expenses: 

Wages Child Care Portion  S 7,500.00 

Wages Government Portion  $ 1,545.00 

Benefit Child Care Portion  $   900.00 

Benefits Government Portion  $   186.00 

License fee      $     10.00 

Maintenance and Janitor  $   100.00   

Program Supplies    $   150.00 

WCB        $     20.00 

Insurance      $   120.00 

Lease and Utilities    $4,000.00 

Telephone Internet    $   150.00 

             

Total Expenses             $14,650.00 

 

     

Total Income minus Expenses             $1,050.00 

   

190



 

11 
 

Attachment 2 – Grant Application  

Knowledge Tree Early Learning and Childcare Centre 
Under Valleyview & Area Early Learning & Child Care Centre Society 
New Center – Perron Building 24 space facility for Ages 12 months to Kindergarten Age 

Year round facility – 7:00 am to 6:00 pm 
 

Request for Grant includes; renovation, set‐up, and supplies needed to meet Government regulations 

Renovations: 

New Wheelchair accessible Bathroom          $1,500.00 

New Laundry Room c/w Washer & Dryer 
  Laundry tub, storage cupboard and counter unit     $2,500.00 

Wheelchair ramp at Entrance            $500.00 

Fence with 2 walk‐in gates and one drive‐in gate       $10,000.00 

Outside Storage Shed              $1,500.00  $16,000.00 

Set‐Up fees and supplies: 

Set up fees which include; 
  Building Inspection, Fire Inspection, Zoning, 

    Health Inspection, Building Permit, Licensing       $500.00 

Office desk, chairs, lockable file cabinet          $1,000.00 

Staff room (table, chairs, microwave, file cabinet)      $1,000.00 

Kitchen Fridge                $1,000.00 

Rooms: 2 small fridge and 2 microwave          $500.00 

Rooms:  2 lockable file cabinets for children`s files      $300.00 

Office supplies; paper, pens & files, etc.          $200.00   

Storage Unit                 $500.00  $5,000.00 

 

 

 

191



 

12 
 

Grant Application page 2 

Equipment and Toys: 

4 cribs, change table, cots, and sheets          $3,250.00 

Sand and Water Table, Art easel, Book Case, Toy Shelf      $2,000.00 

2 Tables and 10 chairs              $1,000.00 

Safety Mirror for Infant room            $250.00 

Assorted Infant toys                  $2,250.00 

Assorted Toddler toys              $2,250.00 

Rugs for centers              $1,000.00  $12,000.00 

Other Expenses: 

Signage for Building              $1,000.00 

Telephone and Internet Installation          $1,000.00 

Computers, Printers, laminator, paper cutter        $5,000.00 

Yard – Trees, grass, a few small pieces of  
playground equipment          $10,000.00  $17,000.00 
 

  Total Grant request                $50,000.00 

 

 

 

 

192



193



194



195



196



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  D.A.R.E. Program 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Community Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  DM 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That  Council  authorize  grant  funding  in  the  amount  of  $1,500.00  from  the  Community  Service 
Miscellaneous Grant Funding Budget for the Valleyview R.C.M.P. Detachment D.A.R.E. (Drug Abuse Resistance 
Education) Program. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
A  letter dated March 6, 2014 was  received  from  the Valleyview R.C.M.P. Detachment  requesting  funding  to 
support the D.A.R.E. program.  The D.A.R.E. program is delivered to grade 5 or 6 students.  The D.A.R.E. program 
is taught by uniformed R.C.M.P. members at no cost to the schools. The R.C.M.P. are requesting funding for the 
costs associated to deliver the program, workbooks, pencils and t‐shirts are awarded upon graduation.   
 
In 2011 Greenview Council provided $1,500.00 to the D.A.R.E. program.  In 2007 and 2009, $500.00 was provided 
to the R.C.M.P. for the DARE Program. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
The  highly  commended  D.A.R.E.  program  is  provided  to  teach  the  students  methods  to  resist  influencing 
pressures to experiment with alcohol, tobacco, marijuana, inhalants and other drugs.  The R.C.M.P. conducted a 
D.A.R.E. Client Survey in 2007 reporting that 97% of the students acquired new methods to make well informed 
decisions regarding the use of drugs, alcohol and peer pressure.  The survey also reported 96% of the student’s 
parents  stated  the D.A.R.E. program  resulted  in a positive effect on  their child’s decision making ability and 
attitude towards drugs and alcohol. 
 
Council has the option to deny the approval of grant funding for the DARE program.   
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
The source of funding for this grant is from the Community Service Miscellaneous Grant. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

 Valleyview RCMP Detachment Letter 

197



198



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Cancel  ‐  April 15, 2014 Committee of the Whole Meeting 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  CAO Services  GM:  DM  PRESENTER:  MH 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council cancel the April 15th Committee of the Whole Meetings. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Due  to a scheduling conflict we are  requesting  that  the April 15, 2014 Committee of  the Whole Meeting be 
cancelled.  
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
The disadvantage of cancelling this meeting is delaying the attendance of delegates for another month. 
 
Council has the option to postpone the date to another suitable time. 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
N/A 

199



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Launch of New Website 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:    OFFICER:  DT 

DEPARTMENT:  CAO Services  GM:    PRESENTER:  DT 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council receive the following for information.  
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Under  the  CAO  Services,  the  Communication Department  has  completed  the  facilitation  and  launch  of  the  new 
website.    This new  site makes uploading documents,  changing  information  and providing  clear,  concise material 
through the Internet presence of the website easy and efficient.   
 
The site  is designed to view on full screen, tablet and smart phone devices, making the  information of Greenview 
accessible to all Internet users. The site integrates well with our services, social media, and most common software 
extensions.  The site is easily navigated and versatile and very easily expanded.  
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES: 
 
N/A 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
N/A 
 
 

200



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Appointment of Member to the New Fish Creek Cemetery Committee 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Corporate Services/Legislative Services  GM:  RO  PRESENTER:  LC 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  Bylaw 97‐218      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council appoint Ms. Jo‐Anne Gardner to the New Fish Creek Cemetery Committee with a term 
ending on the day of the 2017 Greenview Council Organizational Meeting. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Attached  is a  letter  from Ms.  Jo‐Anne Gardner  requesting  to be appointed  to  the New Fish Creek Cemetery 
Committee.  Currently there is one (1) vacancy on the Committee. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Council may choose to appoint Ms. Gardner to the Committee or not to appoint her to the Committee.  If the 
appointment  is made, the  lone vacancy will be  filled.   Ms. Gardner has served previously on the Committee, 
however she had not filed an application last fall when there was a call for applications.   
 
If she is not appointed to the Committee, there will continue to be a vacancy and we will proceed with additional 
advertising to fill the vacancy. 
 
Under  Bylaw  97‐218  appointments  to  Cemetery  Committees  are  to  run  with  the  Council  term.    Thus,  the 
recommendation is to make the appointment until the start of the next Council term in 2017. 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
The source of funding is from the 2014 Operational Budget. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
Letter from Jo‐Anne Gardner. 

201



202



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  2014 Greenview Memorial Golf Tournament 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Corporate Services  GM:  RO  PRESENTER:  LC 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council host the 2014 Greenview Memorial Golf Tournament on Friday, July 18, 2014 at the 
Gunby Ranch Golf Course, with the proceeds going to support (charity of choice), further that Council direct 
Administration to pay all costs associated with the 2014 tournament and the participants to include all levels 
of Government, Council Members and Staff, with funding to come from the 2014 Operational Budget.  
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Annually, Greenview holds a memorial golf tournament.   Last year the Golf Tournament became a sponsored 
event whereby Greenview paid the green fees and other associated costs of the participants.  The invitation list 
included  industry  in addition to the vendors of Greenview.   A total of 68 golfers participated.   Greenview has 
traditionally rotated the location of the tournament. This year the tournament will be held at the Gunby Ranch 
Golf Course based on the rotation schedule.  The date being recommended is in July due to the scheduled Council 
summer recess.   
 
At the 2013 memorial golf tournament, Greenview raised over $7000 for the ALS Society of Alberta, Council’s 
selected 2013 charity recipient. 
 
Due to many of the golf courses used in the rotation schedule being nine‐hole courses and challenging for a larger 
number of participants, Council decided that the invitation list should be split into two focus areas.  Last year the 
focus was on industry and vendor groups.  Council’s other focus group was government (Federal, Provincial, Local 
and Aboriginal). 
   
 
 
 
 
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Council has several options for this golf tournament.   Council may choose not to hold a tournament.   Should 
Council choose this option, the “momentum” of annual tournaments will be broken as Greenview has held golf 
tournaments continuously for in excess of ten years.   
 

203



 

2     Request for Decision 

Council could change the venue.  If a course other than Gunby is selected, the DeBolt Agricultural Society which 
runs the golf course may potentially feel slighted plus lose revenue. 
 
Council could change the date of the event.  If a different date is selected, it will be necessary to ensure that the 
golf course of choice is available on the date chosen.  
 
Council could choose to make the tournament a partially or completely participant‐pay event.  Sponsoring the 
green fees (etc.) of the participants encourages participation in the event but costs Greenview more financially. 
In Administration’s opinion, the public relations created during this events outweighs the financial cost. 
 
Council could choose to change the invitation list for the event.  If the invitation list is changed, it is suggested 
that Council bear in mind that 72 golfers is the recommended maximum number of participants on a nine‐hole 
course and it may be necessary to turn people away if all spots are filled.   
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Funding has been allocated in the 2014 Operational Budget for this tournament. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
Nil. 

204



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  2014 Ratepayer Barbeques 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  INT

DEPARTMENT:  Corporate Services  GM:  RO  PRESENTER:  LC 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  Policy CO 01      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION:  That  Council  host  the  annual  ratepayer  barbeques  as  follows:  In  Valleyview  at  the Greenview 
Operations Building on Tuesday, June 10th, in DeBolt at the Fire Hall on Wednesday, June 11th, in Grande Cache 
at the Eagle’s Nest Hall on Monday, June 16th and in Grovedale at the Community Hall on Tuesday, June 17th 
and  that  each  barbeque will  be  held  from  5:00  p.m.  to  7:00  p.m., with  funding  to  come  from  the  2014 
Operational Budget.  
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
Policy CO 01 states that Council will hold annual Ratepayer Barbeques and will establish the dates, times, venues 
and locations for them. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
Although Administration has recommended the dates, times, venues and locations for the annual barbeques in 
the  motion  above,  Council  may  choose  different  dates,  times,  venues  or  locations  for  the  barbeques.  
Administration has recommended the same weeks and locations as last year for the barbeques.  Administration 
has tentatively booked the venues based on the dates and times noted  in the recommended motion. Should 
Council choose different dates, venues or  locations  it will be necessary  for Administration to ensure that the 
barbeque and venues are available for those dates. 
 
Another option  that Council may wish  to  consider  is  the possibility of holding  the Committee of  the Whole 
meeting on the morning of Tuesday, June 17, 2014 in Grande Cache and proceed to Grovedale for the barbeque 
in the evening. 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Funding for the Barbeques has been allocated in the 2014 Operational Budget. 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 
Policy CO 01. 

205



 
  

Greenview, Alberta     1 

Request for Decision 

4806 – 36 Avenue, Box 1079, Valleyview AB T0H 3N0 
T 780.524.7600   F 780.524.4307 Toll Free 1.866.524.7608 

 
SUBJECT:  Education Property Tax 
SUBMISSION TO:  Regular Council Meeting  REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR SUBMISSION 

MEETING DATE:  March 25, 2014  ACAO:  DM  MANAGER:  DD 

DEPARTMENT:  Corporate Services/Finance  GM:  RO  PRESENTER:  DD 
FILE NO./LEGAL:  N/A      LEGAL/ POLICY REVIEW:  INT
STRATEGIC PLAN:        FINANCIAL REVIEW:  INT

   
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
MOTION: That Council accept the Education Property Tax, Facts and Information brochure as information. 
   
BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:   
 
The Government of Alberta established the Alberta School Foundation Fund in 1994 to ensure that the education 
property tax is accounted for separately from the general revenues.  Annually the Province calculates the amount 
that each municipality must contribute towards the public education system, based on municipal assessment.  
 
An Education Property Tax rate is then established by the Province and individual ratepayers are levied based on 
the assessment of their property.  This rate is indicated separately on your Assessment and Tax Notice.  These 
funds are collected at tax time via provincial requisition and Greenview submits the funds to the Alberta School 
Foundation. 
   
OPTIONS ‐ BENEFITS / DISADVANTAGES:   
 
N/A 
   
COSTS / SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
N/A 
   
ATTACHMENT(S): 
 

1. Education Property Tax , Facts and Information 2014 Brochure 
2. Sample Tax Notice 

206



207



208



209



210


	3.1 Unadopted RC Minutes 2014 03 11
	4.1 a RFD Encana Presentation
	Encana Meeting
	5.1 a Bylaw No. 13-711 NE 13-70-23-W5
	5.2 a Bylaw 13-714 NW 26-71-26-W5 2nd & 3rd Reading
	5.3 a 2nd & 3rd Reading Bylaw no. 14-718  SW 6-72-26-W5M Thorpe
	5.4 a Seward Bylaw 13-701 Public Hearing Final
	6.5 a RFD 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw 14-724
	6.5 b 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw Option 1 (Mil Rate Same As 2013)
	6.5 c 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw Option 2 (Inc   83 all)
	6.5 d 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw Option 3 (Inc 1 Mil NR)
	6.5 e 2014 Tax Rate Bylaw Option 4 (At  70 RF  85 NR)
	6.5 f 2014 TAX BYLAW MUNICIPAL RATE COMPARISONS V3
	8.1 a RFD Grader Blades and Tool Tender
	8.1 b Blade Tender Results
	8.1 c Tender Results for Tools  2014 docx
	8.2 a RFD Grader Service Tenders
	8.2 b 2014 Grader Districts Tender Results Per Area
	8.3 a TWP 710 Discussions
	8.4 a Road Paving Tender Results R1
	8.4 b Recommendation from AMEC
	8.5 a RFD Design and Procurement of Two Firehalls
	8.5 b Firehall Replacement Project Form
	8.5 c Consultancy Services results
	8.6 a RFD- Grovedale Community Hall Cell
	8.6 b Cell Phone Booster Quote
	8.7 a RFD Valleyview Visitor Centre
	8.7 b Letter from the Town of Valleyview - VV Visitor Information Centre
	8.8 a RFD 2014 Western Canadian Stock Dog Trial Finals – Letter of Support
	8.8 b Request Letter - Host of the Stock Dog Trial for 2014 Western Canadian Finals
	8.9 a RFD Grande Prairie Film Festival - Reel Shorts Film Festival
	8.9 b 2014 Reel Shorts Contribution Request
	2014 Reel Shorts Budget.pdf
	Budget


	8.10a RFD Knowledge Tree Early Learning & Childcare Centre
	8.10 b Childcare Proposal
	8.10 c Proposed Childcare Space - PowerPoint Printout
	8.11 a RFD Dare Program
	8.11 b Valleyview RCMP Detachment Letter
	8.12 a RFD Cancel Committee of the Whole Meeting
	8.13 a Website
	8.14 a RFD New Fish Creek - Gardner Appointment
	8.14 b Letter from Jo-Anne Gardner
	8.15 a RFD 2014 Annual Golf Tournament RO
	8.16 a RFD 2014 Ratepayer Barbeques
	8.17 a RFD Education Property Tax
	8.17 b Education Property Tax Brochure
	8.17 c Education Property Tax Examples



